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PART I  
Item 1. Business  
General  
Old Point Financial Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of Virginia on February 16, 1984, for the purpose of 
acquiring all the outstanding common stock of The Old Point National Bank of Phoebus (the “Bank”), in connection with the reorganization of 
the Bank into a one bank holding company structure. At the annual meeting of the stockholders on March 27, 1984, the proposed 
reorganization was approved by the requisite stockholder vote. At the effective date of the reorganization on October 1, 1984, the Bank merged 
into a newly formed national bank as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, with each outstanding share of common stock of the Bank 
being converted into five shares of common stock of the Company.  

The Company completed a spin-off of its trust department as of April 1, 1999. The newly formed organization is chartered as Old Point Trust 
and Financial Services, N.A. (“Trust”). Trust is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company does not engage in any activities 
other than acting as a holding company for the common stock of the Bank and Trust. The principal business of the Company is conducted 
through its subsidiaries which continue to conduct business in substantially the same manner and from the same offices.  

The Bank is a national banking association founded in 1922. The Bank has sixteen offices in the cities of Hampton, Newport News, Norfolk 
and Chesapeake, as well as James City and York County, Virginia, and provides a full range of banking and related financial services, 
including checking, savings, certificates of deposit, and other depository services, commercial, industrial, residential real estate and consumer 
loan services, safekeeping services.  

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had assets of $645.9 million, loans of $405.1 million, deposits of $490.4 million, and stockholders’  
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equity of $63.3 million. At year end, the Company and its subsidiaries had a total of 264 employees, 26 of whom were part-time.  

The Company’s trade area is Hampton Roads, which includes Williamsburg, Poquoson, Newport News, Hampton, Chesapeake, Norfolk, 
Virginia Beach, Portsmouth and Suffolk. The area also includes the Isle of Wight, James City, Gloucester and Mathews counties. According to 
the 2000 Hampton Roads Statistical Digest, there are more than 1.6 million people in the area with 30% of all jobs linked to the military. The 
service industry, which employed approximately 194,000 in 1999, is the biggest provider of jobs in Hampton Roads.  

The banking industry is highly competitive in the Hampton Roads area. There are approximately twenty commercial and savings banks 
conducting business in the area. Six of these are major statewide banking organizations.  

The Bank encounters competition for deposits and loans from banks, saving and loan associations, and credit unions in the area in which it 
operates. In addition, the Bank must compete for deposits in some instances with nationally marketed money market funds, brokerage firms 
and on-line or internet banks.  

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to regulation and examination by the Federal Reserve Board (“the Board”), the Office of the 
Comptroller of the Currency and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“the FDIC”).  

As a bank holding company within the meaning of the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, the Company is subject to the ongoing regulation, 
supervision, and examination by the Federal Reserve Board (the “Board”). The Company is required to file with the Board periodic and annual 
reports and other information concerning its own business operations and those of its subsidiaries. In addition, prior Board approval must be 
obtained before the Company can acquire (i) ownership or control of any voting shares of another bank if, after such acquisition, it would 
control more than 5% of such shares, or (ii) all or substantially all of the assets of another bank or merge or consolidate with another bank 
holding company. A bank holding company is prohibited under the Bank Holding Company Act, with limited exceptions, from engaging in 
activities other than those of banking or of managing or controlling banks or furnishing services to its subsidiaries.  

Statistical Information  
The following statistical information is furnished pursuant to the requirements of Guide 3 (Statistical Disclosure by Bank Holding Companies) 
promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933.  

I.     Distribution of Assets, Liabilities and Shareholders’  Equity; Interest Rates and Interest Differential  

The following table presents the distribution of assets, liabilities, and shareholders’ equity by major categories with related average yields/rates. 
In these balance sheets, nonaccrual loans are included in the daily average loans outstanding. The following table sets forth a summary of 
changes in interest earned and paid attributable to changes in volume and changes in yields/rates.  

TABLE I  

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS, NET INTEREST INCOME* AND RA TES*  

For the years ended December 31,   2003     2002     2001   
Dollars in thousands     Average     Average     Average 

    Interest Rates   Interest Rates   Interest Rates 
  Average Income/ Earned/ Average Income/ Earned/ Average Income/ Earned/ 
  Balance Expense Paid Balance Expense Paid Balance Expense Paid 
ASSETS 
  
Loans $387,137 $26,538 6.85% $362,228 $27,320 7.54% $332,097 $27,765 8.36% 
Investment securities: 
  Taxable 116,993 4,368 3.73% 84,867 4,279 5.04% 76,670 4,389 5.72% 
  Tax-exempt 45,907 3,296 7.18% 49,097 3,540 7.21% 52,031 3,773 7.25% 

  
    Total investment securities 162,900 7,664 4.70% 133,964 7,819 5.84% 128,701 8,162 6.34% 
Federal funds sold 15,902 164 1.03% 16,120 250 1.55% 14,467 563 3.89% 

  
  Total earning assets 565,939 34,366 6.07% 512,312 35,389 6.91% 475,265 36,490 7.68% 
Reserve for loan losses (4,789) (4,304) (3,646) 
  561,150 508,008 471,619 
  
Cash and due from banks 13,906 11,478 9,862 
Bank premises and equipment 14,170 14,718 15,715 
Other assets 11,509 8,980 4,838 
Total assets $600,735 $543,184 $502,034 

  



* Computed on a fully taxable equivalent basis using a 34% rate  

The following table sets forth a summary of changes in interest earned and paid attributable to changes in volume and changes in yields/rates.  

TABLE II  
ANALYSIS OF CHANGE IN NET INTEREST INCOME *  

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' 
EQUITY 
Time and savings deposits: 
  Interest-bearing transaction accounts $10,160 $      35 0.34% $7,922 $      46 0.58% $6,559 $      88 1.34% 
  Money market deposit accounts 120,206         817  0.68% 110,767 1,242 1.12% 100,577 2,159 2.15% 
  Savings accounts 36,613 205 0.56% 31,940 302 0.95% 28,864 536 1.86% 
  Certificates of deposit, $100,000 or more 56,944 1,597 2.80% 56,048 1,991 3.55% 49,072 2,672 5.45% 
  Other certificates of deposit 147,822 4,704 3.18% 142,591 6,306 4.42% 142,987 8,202 5.74% 
  
    Total time and savings deposits 371,745 7,358 1.98% 349,268 9,887 2.83% 328,059 13,657 4.16% 
Federal funds purchased, securities sold under 
  agreement to repurchase and FHLB advances 64,296 2,278 3.54% 52,274 2,038 3.90% 51,253 2,425 4.73% 
Other short term borrowings 1,673 7 0.42% 2,172 31 1.43% 2,158 73 3.38% 
  
  Total interest bearing liabilities 437,714 9,643 2.20% 403,714 11,956 2.96% 381,470 16,155 4.23% 
Demand deposits 99,322     82,028     68,516 
Other liabilities 2,613     2,363     2,327 
  
  Total liabilities 539,649     488,105     452,313 
Stockholders' equity 61,086     55,079     49,721 
  
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $600,735     $543,184     $502,034 
  
Net interest income/yield   $24,723 4.37%   $23,433 4.57%   $20,335 4.28% 
  
Total deposits $471,067     $431,296     $396,575 

Year 2003 over 2002 Year 2002 over 2001 Year 2001 over 2000 
Due to change in: Due to change in: Due to change in: 

  Net     Net     Net 
  Average Average Increase Average Average Increase Average Average Increase 
Dollars in Thousands Volume Rate (Decrease) Volume Rate (Decrease) Volume Rate Decrease) 

INCOME FROM EARNING 
ASSETS 
Loans $ 1,879  $(2,661) $     (782) $ 2,519  $(2,964)  $  (445) $ 2,477  $(1,337) $ 1,140  
Investment Securities: 
 Taxable 1,620  (1,531) 89  469  (579) (110) 340  (334) 6  
 Tax-exempt (230) (14) (244) (213) (20) (233) (201) (116) (317) 
  
  Total investment securities 1,390  (1,545) (155) 256  (599) (343) 139  (450) (311) 
  
Federal funds sold (3) (83) (86) 64  (377) (313) 774  (422) 352  
  3,266  (4,289) (1,023) 2,839  (3,940) (1,101) 3,390  (2,209) 1,181  
  
INTEREST EXPENSE 
Interest bearing transaction accounts 13  (24) (11) 18  (60) (42) 46  (67) (21) 
Money market deposit accounts 106  (531) (425) 219  (1,136) (917) 230  (1,084) (854) 
Savings accounts 44  (141) (97) 57  (291) (234) 16  (254) (238) 
Certificate of deposits, $100,000 or 
more 32  (426) (394) 380  (1,061) (681) 805  (184) 621  
Other certificates of deposit 231  (1,833) (1,602) (23) (1,873) (1,896) 356  (17) 339  
  Total time and savings deposits 426  (2,955) (2,529) 651  (4,421) (3,770) 1,454  (1,607) (153) 
  



* Computed on a fully taxable equvilent basis using a 34% rate.  

Interest Sensitivity  

The following table reflects the earlier of the maturity or repricing data for various assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2003.  

TABLE III  
INTEREST SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS  

Federal funds purchased and 
securities sold 
  under agreement to repurchase 469  (229) 240  48  (435) (387) 132  (476) (344) 
Other short-term borrowings (7) (17) (24) 0  (42) (42) 11  (65) (54) 
Total expense for interest bearing 
liabilities 888  (3,201) (2,313) 699  (4,899) (4,199) 1,597  (2,148) (551) 
  
Change in Net Interest Income $ 2,378  $(1,088) $ 1,290  $ 2,140  $    959  $ 3,098  $ 1,794  $   (62) $ 1,732  

As of December 31, 2003 Within 4-12 1-5 Over 5   

Dollars in thousands 3 Months Months Years Years Total 

Uses of funds 
  

Federal funds sold $   14,969  $          -  $         -  $         -  $  14,969  

Taxable investments 6,899  4,054  106,192  22,572  139,717  

Tax-exempt investments 690  1,119  16,013  27,709  45,531  

  Total investments 22,558  5,173  122,205  50,281  200,217  

  

Loans: 

 Commercial 23,134  3,754  19,595  2,740  49,223  

 Tax-exempt 176           -            -  2,668  2,844  

 Consumer 5,209  2,699  56,160  9,776  73,844  

 Real estate 71,211  5,778  137,077  60,646  274,712  

 Other 1,135  66  3,275  12  4,488  

Total loans 100,865  12,297  216,107  75,842  405,111  

Total earning assets $ 123,423  $   17,470  $338,312  $126,123  $605,328  

  

Sources of funds 
  

Interest checking deposits 14,596            -            -            -  14,596  

Money market deposit accounts 125,808            -            -            -  125,808  

Regular savings accounts 39,264            -            -            -  39,264  

Certificates of deposit 

  $100,000 or more 13,329  23,377  17,433            -  54,139  

Other time deposits 21,034  63,671  57,809            -  142,514  

Federal funds purchased, 
securities 

  sold under agreements to 

  repurchase and FHLB 
advances 38,007            -  15,000  35,000  88,007  

Other borrowed money 1,811            -            -            -  1,811  

Total interest bearing liabilities $ 253,849  $   87,048  $  90,242  $  35,000  $466,139  

  

Rate sensitivity GAP $(130,426) $ (69,578) $248,070  $  91,123  $139,189  



The Company was liability sensitive as of December 31, 2003. There were $130 million more in liabilities than assets subject to repricing 
within three months. This generally indicates that net interest income should improve if interest rates fall since liabilities will reprice faster than 
assets.  

It should be noted, however, that savings deposits; which consist of interest bearing transactions accounts, money market accounts, and savings 
accounts; are less interest sensitive than other market driven deposits. In a rising rate environment these deposit rates have historically lagged 
behind the changes in earning asset rates, thus mitigating somewhat the impact from the liability sensitivity position.  

II. Investment Portfolio  

Note 3 of the Notes to Financial Statements found in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Report on Form 10K 
presents the book and market value of investment securities on the dates indicated.  

The following table shows, by type and maturity, the book value and weighted average yields of investment securities at December 31, 2003.  

TABLE IV  
INVESTMENT SECURITY MATURITIES AND YIELDS  

Yields are calculated on a fully tax equivalent basis using a 34% rate.  

At December 31, 2003, the book value of other marketable equity securities with no stated maturity totaled $3.9 million with an weighted 
average yield of 3.32%. These securities consisted of Federal Home Loan Bank stock of $2.5 million yielding 3.20%, Federal Reserve stock of 
$169 thousand yielding 6.00%, Bankers Title of Hampton Roads stock yielding 64.44%, money market fund of $897 thousand yielding 0.78% 
and other securities of $200 thousand. The book value of other marketable securities with no stated maturity totaled $3.1 million, yielding 
3.66%; and $3.2 million, yielding 4.66%; at December 31, 2002, and 2001 respectively.  

III. Loan Portfolio  

The following table shows a breakdown of total loans by type at December 31 for years 1999 through 2003:  

TABLE V  
LOANS  

  

Cumulative GAP $(130,426) $(200,004) $  48,066  $139,189  

  U.S.Govt/Agency State/Municipal Total 
  Book Weighted Book Weighted Book Weighted 
  Value Average Value Average Value Average 
Dollars in Thousands   Yield   Yield   Yield 

December 31, 2003             
 Maturities: 
  Within 1 year $    7,023  5.31% $  1,784  7.43% $    8,807  5.74% 
  After 1 year, but within 5 years $105,349  3.48% $15,396  6.86% $120,745  3.91% 
  After 5 years, but within 10 years $  22,252  3.06% $19,893  6.67% $  42,145  4.76% 
  After 10 years $           0  0.00% $  7,235  6.53% $    7,235  6.53% 
TOTAL $134,624  3.51% $44,308  6.74% $178,932  4.31% 
  
December 31, 2002 $  99,986  4.25% $49,285  6.76% $149,271  5.08% 
December 31, 2001 $  80,013  5.49% $52,041  6.81% $132,054  6.01% 

As of December 31, 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 
Dollars in thousands 

Commercial and other $  53,711  $  52,183  $  51,608  $  62,181  $  62,257  



Based on Standard Industry Code, there are no categories of loans which exceed 10% of total loans other than the categories disclosed in the 
preceding table.  

The maturity distribution and rate sensitivity of certain categories of the Bank’s loan portfolio at December 31, 2003 is presented below:  

TABLE VI  
MATURITY SCHEDULE OF SELECTED LOANS  

The following table presents information concerning the aggregate amount of nonaccrual, past due and restructured loans as of December 31 
for the years 1999 through 2003.  

TABLE VII  
NONACCRUAL, PAST DUE AND RESTRUCTURED LOANS  

Loans are placed in nonaccrual status if principal or interest has been in default for a period of 90 days or more unless the obligation is both 
well secured and in the process of collection. A debt is “well secured” if it is secured (i) by collateral in the form of liens on or pledges of real 
or personal property, including securities, that have a realizable value sufficient to discharge the debt in full or (ii) by the guaranty of a 
financially responsible party. A debt is “in the process of collection” if collection of the debt is proceeding in due course either through legal 
action, including judgment enforcement procedures, or, in appropriate circumstances, through collection efforts not involving legal action 
which are reasonably expected to result in repayment of the debt or in its restoration to a current status.  

Potential problem loans consist of loans that, because of potential credit problems of the borrowers, have caused management to have serious 
doubts as to the ability of such borrowers to comply with the loan repayment terms. At December 31, 2003 such problem loans, not included in 
Table VII, amounted to approximately $4.7 million. There was one relationship in excess of $500 thousand.  

IV. Summary of Loan Loss Experience  

The determination of the balance of the Allowance for Loan Losses is based upon a review and analysis of the loan portfolio and reflects an 
amount which, in management’s judgment, is adequate to provide for possible future losses. Management’s review includes monthly analysis 

Real Estate Construction 32,844  29,822  27,056  15,219  11,461  
Real Estate Mortgage 241,868  204,946  177,237  155,367  140,004  
Tax Exempt 2,844  2,966  2,957  3,314  2,747  
Installment Loans to Individuals 73,844  88,044  87,625  83,829  65,178  
  
  Total $405,111  $377,961  $346,483  $319,910  $281,647  

December 31, 2003 One year One through Over five 
Dollars in thousands or less five years years Total 

Commercial and other $28,090  $22,869  $  2,752  $53,711  
Real estate construction 26,784  5,640  420  32,844  
  Total $54,874  $28,509  $  3,172  $86,555  
  
Loans maturing after one year with: 
Fixed interest rate   $28,509  $  3,172  $31,681  
Variable interest rate   $        --  $        --  $        --  

As of December 31, 2003  2002  2001  2000  1999  
Dollars in thousands 

Nonaccrual loans $243  $314  $351  $ 37  $  514  
Accruing loans past due 
 90 days or more 736  608  450  470  1,351  
  
Restructured loans none  none  none  none  none  
  
Interest income which would have been 
 recorded under original loan terms 34  49  41  25  49  
  
Interest income recorded during the period 12  16  83  9  68  



of past due and nonaccrual loans and detailed periodic loan by loan analyses.  

The principal factors considered by management in determining the adequacy of the allowance are the growth and composition of the loan 
portfolio, historical loss experience, the level of nonperforming loans, economic conditions, the value and adequacy of collateral, and the 
current level of the allowance.  

The following table shows an analysis of the Allowance for Loan Losses for the years 1999 through 2003.  

TABLE VIII  
ANALYSIS OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES  

* Income before taxes plus provision for loan losses, divided by net charge-offs.  

The following table shows the amount of the Allowance for Loan Losses allocated to each category at December 31 for the years 1999 through 
2003.  

TABLE IX  
ALLOCATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES  

For the year ended December 31, 2003  2002  2001  2000  1999  
Dollars in thousands 

Balance at beginning of period $    4,565  $    3,894  $    3,649  $    3,111  $    2,855  
  
Charge Offs: 
Commercial, financial and agricultural 149  545  680  266  138  
Real estate construction --  8  --  --  --  
Real estate mortgage 244  98  19  --  74  
Consumer loans 802  761  724  486  581  
Other loans --  --  36  --  --  
  Total charge offs 1,195  1,412  1,459  752  793  
  
Recoveries: 
Commercial, financial and agricultural 219  90  222  418  104  
Real estate construction --  --  --  --  --  
Real estate mortgage 6  5  21  3  1  
Consumer loans 237  288  256  244  294  
Other loans --  --  5  --  --  
Total recoveries 462  383  504  665  399  
  
Net charge offs 733  1,029  955  87  394  
  
Additions charged to operations 1,000  1,700  1,200  625  650  
Balance at end of period $    4,832  $    4,565  $    3,894  $    3,649  $    3,111  
  
Selected loan loss statistics 
Loans (net of unearned income): 
  End of period $405,111  $377,961  $346,483  $319,910  $281,647  
  Daily average $387,137  $362,228  $332,097  $303,826  $259,320  
  
Net charge offs to average total loans 0.19% 0.28% 0.29% 0.03% 0.15% 
Provision for loan losses to average total loans 0.26% 0.47% 0.36% 0.21% 0.25% 
Provision for loan losses to net charge offs 136.43% 165.21% 125.65% 718.39% 164.97% 
Allowance for loan losses to period end loans 1.19% 1.21% 1.12% 1.14% 1.10% 
Earnings to loan loss coverage* 15.55   8.89   7.90   76.57   17.32   

As of December 31,   2003   2002   2001   2000   1999 
    Percent   Percent   Percent   Percent   Percent 



V. Deposits  

The following table shows the average balances and average rates paid on deposits for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001.  

TABLE X  
DEPOSITS  

The following table shows certificates of deposit in amounts of $100,000 or more as of December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 by time remaining 
until maturity.  

TABLE XI  
CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT $100,000 AND MORE  

VI. Return on Equity and Assets  

The return on average shareholders’ equity and assets, the dividend pay out ratio, and the average equity to average assets ratio for the past 
three years are presented below.  

    of loans   of loans   of loans;   of loans   of loans 
    in Each   in Each   in Each   in Each   in Each 
    Category   Category   Category   Category   Category 

  Amount 
Total 
Loans Amount 

Total 
Loans Amount 

Total 
Loans Amount 

Total 
Loans Amount 

Total 
Loans 

Commercial and other 1,032 13.96% 781 14.59% 667 15.75% 742 20.47% 828 23.08% 
Real Estate 
Construction 106 8.11% 149 7.89% 119 7.81% 49 4.76% 40 4.07% 
Real Estate Mortgage 743 59.70% 1,362 54.22% 791 51.15% 212 48.57% 195 49.71% 
Consumer 777 18.23% 1,135 23.30% 921 25.29% 519 26.20% 414 23.14% 
Unallocated 2,174   1,138   1,396   2,127   1,634 
Total $4,832 100.00% 4,565 100.00% $3,894 100.00% $3,649 100.00% $3,111 100.00% 

For the year ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 
Average Average Average Average Average Average 

Dollars in thousands Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate 

Interest bearing transaction accounts $  10,160 0.34% $    7,922 0.58% $    6,559 1.34% 
Money market deposit accounts 120,206 0.68% 110,767 1.12% 100,577 2.15% 
Savings accounts 36,613 0.56% 31,940 0.95% 28,864 1.86% 
Certificate of deposit, $100,000 or more 56,944 2.80% 56,048 3.55% 49,072 5.45% 
Other certificate of deposit 147,822 3.18% 142,591 4.42% 142,987 5.74% 
Total interest bearing deposits 371,745 2.83% 349,268 2.83% 328,059 4.16% 
Non-interest bearing demand deposits 99,322   82,028   68,516 
Total deposits $471,067   $431,296   $396,575 

Dollars in thousands 2003 2002 2001 

Maturing in 
3 months or less $12,591 $12,527 $  8,445 
3 through 6 months 9,191 10,080 13,397 
6 through 12 months 14,686 11,047 11,427 
over 12 months 17,671 19,791 12,535 
  $54,139 $53,445 $45,804 

  2003  2002  2001  
Return on average assets 1.30% 1.30% 1.14% 
Return on average equity 12.81% 12.80% 11.48% 

Dividend payout ratio 27.35% 25.19% 28.17% 
Average equity to average assets 10.17% 10.14% 9.90% 



VII. Short Term Borrowings  

The Bank periodically borrowed funds through federal funds from its correspondent banks, through the use of a demand note to the United 
States Treasury (Treasury Tax and Loan Deposits), and through securities sold under agreements to repurchase. The borrowings matured daily 
and were based on daily cash flow requirements. The borrowed amounts (in thousands) and their corresponding rates during 2003, 2002, and 
2001 are presented in the following table.  

TABLE XII  
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS  

Item 2. Properties  
The Bank owns the Main Office, five office buildings, and ten branches. All of the above properties are owned directly and free of any 
encumbrances. The land at the Fort Monroe branch is leased by the Bank under an agreement expiring in October 2011. The remaining four 
branches are leased from unrelated parties under leases with renewal options which expire anywhere from 10-15 years.  

For more information concerning the commitments under current leasing agreements, see Note 12. Lease Commitments of the Notes to 
Financial Statements found in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Report on Form 10K. Additional information on 
Other Real Estate Owned can be found in Note 7. Other Real Estate Owned of the Notes to Financial Statements found in Item 8. Financial 
Statements and Supplementary Data of this Report on Form 10K.  

Item 3. Legal Proceedings  
The Company is not a party to any material pending legal proceedings before any court, administrative agency, or other tribunal.  

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders  
There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the quarter ended December 31, 2003.  

Part II  
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Stock and Related Stockholder Matters  

2003 2002 2001 
Dollars in thousands Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate 

Balance at December 31, 
Federal funds purchased $        --  0.00% $        --  0.00% $        --  0.00% 
Securities sold under 
 agreement to repurchase 38,007  0.93% 21,283  1.13% 28,321  1.67% 
U. S. treasury demand notes 
 and other borrowed money 1,811  0.75% 6,000  1.00% 369  1.50% 
Total $39,818    $27,283    $28,690  
  
Average daily balance outstanding: 
Federal funds purchased $     116  0.53% $         1  2.16% $         1  2.49% 
Securities sold under 
 agreement to repurchase 22,162  1.01% 25,475  1.50% 26,252  3.38% 
U. S. treasury demand notes 
 and other borrowed money 1,673  0.96% 2,172  1.43% 2,158  3.38% 
Total $23,951  3.46% $27,648  3.75% $28,411  4.65% 
  
The maximum amount outstanding 
 at any month end: 
Federal funds purchased $        --    $        --    $        --  
Securities sold under 
 agreement to repurchase $38,502    $26,098    $28,546  
U. S. treasury demand notes 
 and other borrowed money $  6,000    $  6,000    $  6,165  



Beginning in 2000 the common stock of Old Point Financial Corporation was quoted on the Nasdaq SmallCap under the symbol “OPOF”. The 
approximate number of shareholders of record as of December 31, 2003 was 1,342. The range of high and low prices and dividends per share 
of the Company’s common stock for each quarter during 2003 and 2002 is presented in Part II. Item 7. of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 
Additional information related to stockholder matters can be found in Note 17. Regulatory Matters of the Notes to Financial Statements found 
in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Report on Form 10K.  

Item 6. Selected Financial Data  
The following table summarizes the Company’s performance for the past five years.  

SELECTED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS  

Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 

(Dollars in Thousands except per share data) 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
  
Interest income $33,167  $34,112  $35,108  $33,644  $29,483  
Interest expense 9,643   11,956   16,156   16,707   13,862   
Net interest income 23,524  22,156  18,952  16,937  15,621  
Provision for loan loss 1,000   1,700   1,200   625   650   
Net interest income after provision for loan loss 22,524  20,456  17,752  16,312  14,971  
Gains (losses) on sales of investment securities 60  14  (1) 44  (54) 
Noninterest income 7,408  7,128  6,543  5,641  5,440  
Noninterest expenses 19,596   18,291   16,850   15,657   14,320   
Income before taxes 10,396  9,307  7,444  6,340  6,037  
Income taxes 2,571   2,256   1,734   1,207   1,215   
Net income $7,825  $7,051  5,710  5,133  $4,822  
  
FINANCIAL CONDITION 
  
Total assets $645,915  $576,623  $518,759;  $477,096  $436,294  
Total deposits 490,422  454,052  412,303  374,779  360,918  
Total loans 405,111  377,961  346,483  319,910  281,647  
Stockholders'equity 63,299  58,116  50,912  46,497  40,814  
Average assets 600,733  543,184  502,035  459,603  423,681  
Average equity 61,085  55,079  49,721  43,258  40,840  
  
PERTINENT RATIOS 
  
Return on average assets 1.30% 1.30% 1.14% 1.12% 1.14% 
Return on average equity 12.81% 12.80% 11.48% 11.87% 11.81% 
Dividends paid as a percent of net income 27.35% 25.19% 28.17% 29.23% 28.89% 
Average equity as a percent of average assets 10.17% 10.14% 9.90% 9.41% 9.64% 
  
PER SHARE DATA 
  
Basic EPS $1.98  $1.80  $1.47  $1.32  $1.25  
Cash dividends declared 0.540  0.453  0.413  0.387  0.360  
Book value 15.92  14.76  13.06  11.97  10.53  
  
GROWTH RATES 
  
Year end assets 12.02% 11.15% 8.73% 9.35% 7.96% 
Year end deposits 8.01% 10.13% 10.01% 3.84% 5.10% 
Year end loans 7.18% 9.09% 8.31% 13.59% 19.41% 
Year end equity 8.92% 14.15% 9.50% 13.92% 2.00% 
Average assets 10.59% 8.20% 9.23% 8.48% 11.27% 
Average equity 10.90% 10.78% 14.94% 5.92% 6.01% 
Net income 10.98% 23.49% 11.24% 6.45% 4.01% 
Cash dividends declared 19.21% 9.69% 6.72% 7.50% 12.50% 
Book value 7.84% 13.07% 9.11% 13.60% 1.69% 



Item 7.   Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations  
        The following discussion is intended to assist readers in understanding and evaluating the consolidated results of operations and financial 
condition of the Company. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and other financial information 
contained elsewhere in this report. The analysis attempts to identify trends and material changes which occurred during the period presented.  

EARNINGS SUMMARY  
        Net income was $7.83 million, or $1.98 per share in 2003 compared to $7.05 million, or $1.80 per share in 2002 and $5.71 million, or 
$1.47 per share in 2001. Return on average assets was 1.30% in 2003, 1.30% in 2002 and 1.14% in 2001. Return on average equity was 
12.81% in 2003, 12.80% in 2002 and 11.48% in 2001. For the past five years return on average assets has averaged 1.20% and return on 
average equity has averaged 12.15%. Selected Financial Highlights summarizes the Company’s performance for the past five years.  

NET INTEREST INCOME  
        The principal source of earnings for the Company is net interest income. Net interest income is the difference between interest and fees 
generated by earning assets and interest expense paid to fund them. Net interest income, on a tax equivalent basis, was $24.72 million in 2003, 
up $1.29 million, or 6% from $23.43 million in 2002 which was up $3.09 million, or 15% from $20.34 million in 2001. Net interest income is 
affected by variations in interest rates and the volume and mix of earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The net interest yield decreased 
to 4.37% in 2003 from 4.57% in 2002, which was up from 4.28% in 2001.  

        Tax equivalent interest income decreased $1.02 million, or 3%, in 2003. Average earning assets grew $53.63 million, or 10%. Total 
average loans increased $24.91 million, or 7%, while average investment securities increased $28.94 million, or 22%. The yield on earning 
assets decreased in 2003 by eighty-four basis points primarily due to declining interest rates.  

        Interest expense decreased $2.31 million or 19%, in 2003 while interest bearing liabilities increased 8% in 2003. The cost of funding 
liabilities decreased seventy-six basis points. The market experienced one rate reduction by the Federal Reserve in 2003.  

PROVISION/ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES  
        Provision for loan losses is a charge against earnings necessary to maintain the allowance for loan losses at a level consistent with 
management’s evaluation of the loan portfolio. The provision decreased to $1.00 million in 2003 and was $1.70 million in 2002 and $1.20 
million in 2001. The decrease was due to a decline in the net charge offs in 2003 as detailed in the next paragraph as well as a surplus being 
reflected in the quarterly allowance analysis.  

        Loans charged off during 2003 totaled $1.20 million compared to $1.41 million in 2002 and $1.46 million in 2001. Recoveries amounted 
to $462 thousand in 2003, $383 thousand in 2002 and $504 thousand in 2001.  

PROVISION/ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (cont)  
        The Company’s net loans charged off to year-end loans were 0.18% in 2003, 0.27% in 2002, and 0.28% in 2001. The allowance for loan 
losses, as a percentage of year-end loans, was 1.19% in 2003, 1.21% in 2002, and 1.12% in 2001.  

        As of December 31, 2003, nonperforming assets were $408 thousand, down from $1.14 million at year-end 2002. Nonperforming assets 
consist of loans in nonaccrual status and other real estate. The 2003 total consisted of other real estate of $165 thousand and $243 thousand in 
nonaccrual loans. The other real estate consists of $165 thousand in commercial property originally acquired as a potential branch site and now 
held for sale. Nonaccrual loans consisted of $243 thousand in commercial real estate loans. Loans still accruing interest but past due 90 days or 
more increased to $736 thousand as of December 31, 2003 compared to $608 thousand as of December 31, 2002.  

        The allowance for loan losses is analyzed for adequacy on a quarterly basis to determine the required amount of provision for loan losses. 
A loan-by-loan review is conducted on all significant classified commercial and mortgage loans. Inherent losses on these individual loans are 
determined and an allocation of the allowance is provided. Smaller nonclassified commercial and mortgage loans and all consumer loans are 
grouped by homogeneous pools with an allocation assigned to each pool based on an analysis of historical loss and delinquency experience, 
trends, economic conditions, underwriting standards, and other factors.  

OTHER INCOME  
        Other income increased $326 thousand, or 5% in 2003 from 2002 compared to an increase of $600 thousand, or 9% in 2002 from 2001. 
The growth in other income is attributed to increases in service charges on deposit accounts, merchant processing fees and Bank Owned Life 
Insurance (BOLI) income. Service charges on deposit accounts increased by $62 thousand in 2003. Merchant processing fees increased by $44 
thousand in 2003. The Bank Owned Life Insurance (BOLI) on certain officers generated a $96 thousand increase in revenue over 2002.  



OTHER EXPENSES  
        Other expenses increased $1.31 million or 7% in 2003 over 2002 after increasing 9% in 2002 from 2001. Salary expense increased by $1.0 
million or 9% as a result of normal yearly salary increases and the addition of new positions within the Company. The Company opened a new 
branch in Chesapeake in October 2003. Several new positions were added as a result of an organizational restructuring to accommodate 
anticipated future growth.  

ASSETS  
        At December 31, 2003, the Company had total assets of $645.9 million, up 12% from $576.6 million at December 31, 2002. Average 
assets in 2003 were $600.7 million compared to $543.2 million in 2002. The growth in assets in 2003 was due to the increase in investments, 
which were up 19% and loans, which were up 7% in 2003.  

LOANS  
        Total loans as of December 31, 2003 were $405.1 million, up 7% from $378.0 million at December 31, 2002. The Company realized 
significant growth in the real estate category of loans. Footnote 4 of the financial statements details the loan volume by category for the past 
two years.  

INVESTMENT SECURITIES  
        At December 31, 2003 total investment securities were $185.2 million, up 19% from $156.0 million on December 31, 2002. The goal of 
the Company is to provide maximum return on the investment portfolio within the framework of its asset/liability objectives. These objectives 
include managing interest sensitivity, liquidity and pledging requirements.  

DEPOSITS  
        At December 31, 2003, total deposits amounted to $490.4 million, up 8% from $454.1 million on December 31, 2002. Non-interest 
bearing deposits increased $23.5 million, or 26%, at year-end 2003 over 2002. Savings deposits increased $20.6 million, or 13%, in 2003 over 
2002. Certificates of Deposit decreased $7.7 million or 4% in 2003 from 2002.  

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY  
        Total stockholders’ equity as of December 31, 2003 was $63.3 million, up 9% from $58.1 million on December 31, 2002. The Company 
is required to maintain minimum amounts of capital under banking regulations. Under the regulations, Total Capital is composed of core 
capital (Tier 1) and supplemental capital (Tier 2). Tier 1 capital consists of common stockholders’ equity less goodwill. Tier 2 capital consists 
of certain qualifying debt and a qualifying portion of the allowance for loan losses. The following is a summary of the Company’s capital ratios 
for 2003, 2002 and 2001.  

        Year-end book value was $15.92 in 2003 and $14.76 in 2002. Cash dividends were $2.1 million, or $.54 per share in 2003 and $1.8 
million, or $.453 per share in 2002. The common stock of the Company has not been extensively traded. The table below shows the high and 
low closing prices for each quarter of 2003 and 2002. The stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Small Cap under the symbol “OPOF” and the prices 
below are based on trade information. There were 1342 stockholders of the Company as of December 31, 2003. This stockholder count does 
not include stockholders who hold their stock in a nominee registration.  

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (cont)  
The following is a summary of the dividends paid and market price on Old Point Financial Corporation common stock for 2003 and 2002.  

    2003  2003  2002  2001  
    Regulatory 
    Requirements 
  Tier 1 4.00% 14.15% 13.91% 13.97% 
  Total Capital 8.00% 15.26% 15.12% 15.05% 
  Tier 1 Leverage 3.00% 9.81% 9.79% 9.77% 

  2003 2002 



LIQUIDITY  
        Liquidity is the ability of the Company to meet present and future obligations through the acquisition of additional liabilities or sale of 
existing assets. Management considers the liquidity of the Company to be adequate. Sufficient assets are maintained on a short-term basis to 
meet the liquidity demands anticipated by Management. In addition, secondary sources are available through the use of borrowed funds if the 
need should arise.  

        The Company’s sources of funds include a large stable deposit base and secured advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank. The 
Company structures its Balance Sheet such that liquid assets, such as loans are funded through customer deposits, long-term debt, other 
liabilities and capital.  

        The Company has available short-term unsecured borrowed funds in the form of federal funds with correspondent banks. As of year-end 
2003, the company had available $30 million in federal funds to handle any short-term borrowing needs.  

EFFECTS OF INFLATION  
        Management believes that the key to achieving satisfactory performance in an inflationary environment is its ability to maintain or 
improve its net interest margin and to generate additional fee income. The Company’s policy of investing in and funding with interest-sensitive 
assets and liabilities is intended to reduce the risks inherent in a volatile inflationary economy.  

OFF-BALANCE SHEET LENDING RELATED COMMITMENTS  
        The Company had $109.5 million in consumer and commercial commitments at December 31, 2003. The Company also had $1.6 million 
at December 31, 2003 in letters of credit that the Bank will fund if certain future events occur.  

        Old Point has the liquidity and capital resources to handle these commitments in the normal course of business.  

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS  
        The following table provides the Company’s contractual obligations as of December 31, 2003:  

Long-term debt obligations are Federal Home Loan Bank advances.  

Item 7A.   Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk  
For information regarding Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk, see Part I, “Business: Statistical Information – I. 
Distribution of Assets, Liabilities and Shareholder’s Equity; Interest Rates and Interest Differential”.  

Item 8.   Financial Statements and Supplementary Data  

    Market Value   Market Value 

  Dividend High Low Dividend High Low 

1st Quarter $0.12 $37.13 $25.00 $0.106 $19.88 $18.07 
2nd Quarter $0.12 $39.00 $29.00 $0.107 $22.73 $20.00 
3rd Quarter $0.15 $34.30 $27.30 $0.120 $22.87 $20.80 
4th Quarter $0.15 $34.31 $28.25 $0.120 $24.54 $21.37 

Contractual Total Less than 1 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 
Obligation   year     years 

Long-term $50,000,000 $0 $15,000,000 $0 $35,000,000 
Debt 
Obligations 

Operating $1,516,759 $306,481 $509,268 $408,939 $291,071 
Lease 
Obligations 



The consolidated financial statements and related footnotes of the company are presented below followed by the financial statements of the 
parent.  

The following are the summarized financial statements of the Company.  

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

WITT MARES EGGLESTON SMITH, PLC  

To The Board of Directors  
Old Point Financial Corporation  
Hampton,Virginia  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Old Point Financial Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 
and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, cash flows and changes in stockholders’ equity for each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 2003. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Old Point 
Financial Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of 
the years in the three-year period ended December 3l, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  

February 27, 2004  
Norfolk, Virginia  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

/s/WITT MARES EGGLESTON SMITH, PLC  
 
 
WITT MARES EGGLESTON SMITH, PLC 

  December 31, 

2003  2002  

  (in thousands) 
ASSETS     
Cash and due from banks $  18,384  $  14,437  
Federal funds sold 14,969   8,710   
  Cash and cash equivalents  33,353  23,147  
Securities available for sale  172,859  128,488  
Securities held to maturity  12,389  27,516  
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $4,832 and $4,565 400,279  373,396  
Foreclosed assets --  665  
Premises and equipment, net  14,163  13,280  
Other assets 12,872   10,131   
  $645,915   $576,623   
  
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Deposits: 
  Non interest-bearing deposits $114,101  $  90,621  
  Savings deposits 179,668  159,077  



See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME  

  Certificates of Deposit 196,653   204,354   
   Total deposits 490,422  454,052  
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements 38,007  21,283  
Demand notes issued to the United States Treasury 1,811  6,000  
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 50,000  35,000  
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,376   2,172   
   Total liabilities 582,616  518,507  
  
Stockholder's equity: 
Common stock, $5 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized; 
  3,976,019 and 3,936,720 shares issued 19,880  19,684  
Additional paid-in capital 12,433  11,165  
Retained earnings 30,246  25,598  
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 740   1,669   
   Total stockholders' equity 63,299   58,116   
  $645,915   $576,623   

  Years Ended December 31, 
  2003 2002 2001 

  (in thousands, except per share data) 
Interest and dividend income:       
     Loans, including fees $26,459  $27,247  $ 27,666  
     Debt securities: 
       Taxable 4,255  4,182  4,269  
       Tax-exempt 2,175  2,337  2,490  
     Dividends 113  96  120  
     Trading account securities --  --  --  
     Other 165   250   563   
           Total interest and dividend income 33,167  34,112  35,108  
  
Interest expense: 
     Savings deposits 1,057  1,590  2,783  
     Certificates of Deposit 6,301  8,297  10,874  
     Federal funds purchased and securities sold under 
       agreements to repurchase 224  382  887  
     Demand notes issued to the United States Treasury 7  31  73  
     Federal Home Loan Bank advances 2,054   1,656   1,539   
           Total interest expense 9,643   11,956   16,156   
     Net interest income 23,524  22,156  18,952  
     Provision for loan losses 1,000   1,700   1,200   
     Net interest income, after provision for loan losses 22,524  20,456  17,752  
  
Noninterest income: 
     Fiduciary activities 2,224  2,223  2,738  
     Service charges on deposit accounts 2,942  2,880  2,640  
     Other service charges, commissions and fees 1,263  1,083  746  
     Net gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities 60  14  (1) 
     Other 979   942   419   
          Total noninterest income (charges) 7,468  7,142  6,542  
  
Noninterest expense: 
     Salaries and employee benefits 12,109  11,077  10,115  
     Occupancy and equipment 2,923  2,811  2,722  
     Other 4,564   4,403   4,013   
          Total noninterest expenses 19,596   18,291   16,850   
Income before income taxes 10,396  9,307  7,444  
Income tax expenses 2,571   2,256   1,734   
Net income $  7,825   $  7,051   $   5,710   
  



See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  

Basic Earnings per Share 
Average shares outstanding (in thousands) 3,959  3,914  3,891  
Net income per share of common stock $    1.98  $    1.80  $     1.47  
  
Diluted Earnings per Share 
Average shares outstanding (in thousands) 4,073  3,994  3,918  
Net income per share of common stock $    1.92  $    1.77  $     1.46  

Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Dollars in Thousands 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES       
Net income $     7,825  $     7,051  $     5,710  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 
 provided by operating activities: 
  Depreciation and amortization 1,325  1,361  1,431  
  Provision for loan losses 1,000  1,700  1,200  
  (Gains) losses on sale of investment securities, net (60) (14) 1  
  Net amortization and accretion of securities 45  75  45  
  Net (increase) decrease in trading account --  --  --  
  Loss on disposal of equipment 6  94  4  
  (Gains) loss on sale of other real estate owned 41  (0) (17) 
  (Increase) decrease in other assets 
    (net of tax effect of FASB 115 adjustment) (2,345) (6,011) 42  
  Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 43  (48) (193) 
    Net cash provided by operating activities 7,880  4,208  8,223  
  
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
  Purchases of investment securities (163,267) (78,093) (50,955) 
  Proceeds from maturities and calls of securities 132,727  59,582  32,099  
  Proceeds from sales of available - for - sale securities 147  1,350  6,923  
  Proceeds from sales of held - to - maturity securities --  --  --  
  Loans made to customers (176,139) (159,417) (124,190) 
  Principal payments received on loans 148,257  126,910  96,661  
  Purchases of premises and equipment (2,215) (833) (795) 
  Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment 1  517  --  
  Additions to other real estate owned (605) (1,661) (713) 
  Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned 1,229  1,835  477  
    Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (59,865) (49,810) (40,493) 
  
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
  Increase (decrease) in non-interest bearing deposits 23,480  10,643  14,922  
  Increase (decrease) in savings deposits 20,591  18,229  13,188  
  Proceeds from the sale of Certificates of Deposit 77,434  116,702  67,117  
  Payments for maturing Certificates of Deposit (85,135) (103,825) (57,703) 
  Increase (decrease) in federal funds purchased and 
   repurchase agreements 16,723  (7,038) 1,283  
  Increase (decrease) in Federal Home Loan Bank advances 15,000  10,000  --  
  Increase (decrease) in interest bearing 
   demand notes and other borrowed money (4,189) 5,631  (1,720) 
  Proceeds from issuance of common stock 427  378  154  
  Dividends paid (2,140) (1,776) (1,608) 
    Net cash provided by financing activities 62,191  48,944  35,633  
  
    Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 10,206  3,342  3,363  
     Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 23,147  19,805  16,442  
    Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $   33,353  $   23,147  $   19,805  
  
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 



See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’  EQUITY  

Years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 AND 2001  

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  

  Cash payments for: 
    Interest $     9,819  $   12,251  $   16,406  
    Income taxes $     2,571  $     2,256  $     1,775  
  
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH TRANSACTIONS 
  Unrealized gain (loss) on investment 
    securities, net of tax $      (767) $     1,917  $        513  
  
 Additional minimum liability related to pension $      (162) $      (366) $      (354) 
  
 Transfer of property from Premises and Equipment to Other 
   Real Estate Owned $                $        515  $          --  

          Accumulated   
  Shares of Common Additional   Other 
  Common Stock Paid-in Retained Comprehensive 
  Stock (Par Value) Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Total 

  (in thousands, except share data) 
  
Balance at December 31, 2000 2,590,540  $ 12,953  $ 10,288  $ 23,297  $      (41) $ 46,497  
   Comprehensive income: 
     Net income   --  --  5,710  --  5,710  
   Change in net unrealized gain (loss) on 
     securities available for sale --  --  --  --  513  513  
   Minimum pension liability adjustment   --  --  --  (354) (354) 
       Total comprehensive income   --  --  5,710  159  5,869  
   Sale of stock 9,037  45  167  (58) --  154  
   Cash dividends declared ($.413 per share)   --  --  (1,608) --  (1,608) 
Balance at December 31, 2001 2,599,577  $ 12,998  $ 10,455  $ 27,341  $      118  $ 50,912  
  
   Comprehensive income: 
     Net income   --  --  7,051  --  7,051  
   Change in net unrealized gain (loss) on 
     securities available for sale   -- -- -- 1,917  1,917  
   Minimum pension liability adjustment   --  --  --  (366) (366) 
       Total comprehensive income   --  --  7,051  1,551  8,602  
   Sale of stock 37,400  140  710  (472) --  378  
   Stock dividend declared 1,299,743 6,546    (6,546)   --  
   Cash dividends declared ($.453 per share)   --  --  (1,776) --  (1,776) 
Balance at December 31, 2002 3,936,720  $ 19,684  $ 11,165  $ 25,598  $   1,669  $ 58,116  
  
   Comprehensive income: 
     Net income   --  --  7,825  --  7,825  
   Change in net unrealized gain (loss) on 
     securities available for sale --  --  --  (767) (767) 
   Minimum pension liability adjustment   --  --  --  (162) (162) 
       Total comprehensive income   --  --  7,825  (929) 6,896  
   Sale of stock 39,299  196  1,268  (1,037) --  427  
   Cash dividends declared ($.54 per share)   --  --  (2,140) --  (2,140) 
Balance at December 31, 2003 3,976,019  $ 19,880  $ 12,433  $ 30,246  $      740  $      63,299  



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
NOTE 1, Significant Accounting Policies  
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION:  
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Old Point Financial Corporation (“the Company”) and its wholly-owned 
subsidiaries The Old Point National Bank of Phoebus (“the Bank”) and Old Point Trust & Financial Services N.A. (“Trust”). All significant 
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  

NATURE OF OPERATIONS:  
Old Point Financial Corporation is a two-bank holding company that conducts substantially all of its operations through its subsidiaries, The 
Old Point National Bank of Phoebus and Old Point Trust and Financial Services, N.A. The Bank services individual and commercial 
customers, the majority of which are in Hampton Roads. The Bank has sixteen branch offices. The Bank offers a full range of deposit and loan 
products to its retail and commercial customers. Substantially all of the Bank’s deposits are interest bearing. The majority of the Bank’s loan 
portfolio is secured by real estate. Trust offers a full range of services for individuals and businesses. Products and services include retirement 
planning, estate planning, financial planning, trust accounts, tax services, and investment management services.  

USE OF ESTIMATES:  
In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, management is required to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly 
susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses and the valuation of deferred tax 
assets.  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:  
For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash and balances due from banks and federal 
funds sold, all which mature within ninety days.  

INVESTMENT SECURITIES:  
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” (SFAS 115), 
addresses the accounting and reporting for investments in equity securities that have readily determinable fair values and for all investments in 
debt securities. Those investments are to be classified in three categories and accounted for as follows:  

 

LOANS:  
The Corporation grants mortgage, commercial and consumer loans to customers. A substantial portion of the loan portfolio is represented by 
mortgage loans throughout Hampton Roads. The ability of the Corporation’s debtors to honor their contracts is dependent upon the real estate 
and general economic conditions in this area.  

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off generally are reported at their 
outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, and any deferred fees or costs on originated loans. 
Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees and certain direct origination costs are capitalized and 
recognized as an adjustment of the yield on the related loan.  

o Held-to-maturity — Debt securities for which the Corporation has the positive intent and ability to 
hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities and reported at cost, adjusted for 
premiums and discounts that are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the 
period to maturity. 

o Trading — Debt and equity securities that are bought and held principally for the purpose of selling 
them in the near term are classified as trading account securities and recorded at their fair values. 
Unrealized gains and losses on trading account securities are included immediately in income. 

o Available-for -sale — Debt and equity securities not classified as either held-to-maturity securities 
or trading account securities are classified as available-for-sale securities and recorded at fair value, 
with unrealized gains and losses reported as a component of comprehensive income. Gains and 
losses on the sale of available-for-sale securities are determined using the specific identification 
method. Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over 
the period to maturity. 



Accrual of interest is discontinued on a loan when management believes, after considering collection efforts and other factors that the 
borrower’s financial condition is such that collection of interest is doubtful.  

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on non-accrual or charged off is reversed against interest income. The interest on 
these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual 
status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.  

LOANS HELD FOR SALE:  
Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair value, as determined by 
aggregate outstanding commitments from investors or current investor yield requirements. Net unrealized losses are recognized through a 
valuation allowance by charges to income.  

Mortgage loans held for sale are generally sold with the mortgage servicing rights.  

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES:  
The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. 
Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent 
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.  

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management’s periodic review of the 
collectibility of loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the 
borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently 
subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.  

The allowance consists of specific, general and unallocated components. The specific component relates to loans that are classified as either 
doubtful or substandard. For such loans that are also classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or 
collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan. The general component covers 
non-classified loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors. An unallocated component is maintained to cover 
uncertainties that could affect management’s estimate of probable losses. The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of 
imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the portfolio.  

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Corporation will be unable to collect the 
scheduled payments of principal and interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by 
management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and 
interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as 
impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration 
all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior 
payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis 
for commercial and construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, 
the loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.  

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Corporation does not 
separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for impairment disclosures.  

OFF-BALANCE SHEET CREDIT RELATED FINANCIAL INSTRUME NTS:  
In the ordinary course of business, the Corporation has entered into commitments to extend credit, including commitments under commercial 
letters of credit, and lines of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded when they are funded.  

OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED:  
Other real estate owned is carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair value and consists of foreclosed real property and other property held for 
sale. The estimated fair value is reviewed periodically by management and any write-downs are charged against current earnings.  

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT:  
Land is carried at cost. Buildings and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and 
amortization are calculated on both straight-line and accelerated methods and are charged to expense over the estimated useful lives of the 
related assets. Costs of maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.  

INCOME TAXES:  



Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using the liability (or balance sheet) method. Under this method, the new deferred tax 
asset or liability is determined based on the tax effects of the temporary differences between the book and tax basis of the various balance sheet 
assets and liabilities and gives current recognition to changes in tax rates and laws.  

PENSION PLAN:  
The Company has a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all of its employees. Benefits are based on years of 
service and average earnings during the highest average sixty-month period during the final one hundred and twenty months of employment.  

The Company’s policy is to fund the maximum amount of contributions allowed for tax purposes. The Bank accrues an amount equal to its 
actuarially computed obligation under the plan.  

The actuarial valuation was performed using the frozen initial liability cost method. Under this method, the Bank’s contribution equals the sum 
of the amount necessary to amortize the frozen initial liability (past service base) over a period of years and the normal cost of the plan.  

STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS:  
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, encourages all entities to adopt a 
fair value based method of accounting for employee stock compensation plans, whereby compensation cost is measured at the grant date based 
on the value of the award and is recognized over the service period, which is usually the vesting period. However, it also allows an entity to 
continue to measure compensation cost for those plans using the intrinsic value based method of accounting prescribed by Accounting 
Principles Board Opinion No.25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, whereby compensation cost is the excess, if any, of the quoted 
market price of the stock at the grant date (or other measurement date) over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock. Stock 
options issued under the Corporation’s stock option plan have no intrinsic value at the grant date, and under Opinion No. 25 no compensation 
cost is recognized for them. The Corporation has elected to continue with the accounting methodology in Opinion No. 25 and, as a result, has 
provided pro forma disclosures of net income and earnings per share and other disclosures, as if the fair value based method of accounting had 
been applied. The pro forma disclosures include the effects of all unexpired awards. (See Note 10.)  

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE:  
Basic earnings per share represents income available to common stockholders divided by the weighted-average number of common shares 
outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflects additional common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive 
potential common shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to income that would result from the assumed issuance. Potential common 
shares that may be issued by the Corporation relate solely to outstanding stock options, and are determined using the treasury stock method.  

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:  
The accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31 2003 is comprised of unrealized security gains (loss) of $1.6 million net of 
taxes of $836 thousand and the minimum pension liability adjustment of $882 thousand net of a tax benefit of $459 thousand.  

TRUST ASSETS AND INCOME:  
Assets held by Trust are not included in the financial statements, because such items are not assets of the Company. In accordance with 
industry practice, trust service income is recognized primarily on the cash basis. Reporting such income on the accrual basis would not 
materially affect net income.  

ADVERTISING EXPENSE:  
Advertising expenses are expensed as incurred.  

RECLASSIFICATIONS:  
Certain amounts in the financial statements have been reclassified to conform with classifications adopted in the current year.  

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:  
In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (FIN 46) which establishes guidance for 
determining when an entity should consolidate another entity that meets the definition of a variable interest entity. The Interpretation had no 
effect on the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements.  

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No.149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities . This 
Statement amends SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities and clarifies accounting for derivative 



instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133. This 
statement is effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003, except in certain circumstances, and for hedging relationships 
designated after June 30, 2003. This Statement had no effect on the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements.  

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and 
Equity . This Statement provides new rules on the accounting for certain financial instruments that, under previous guidance, issuers could 
account for as equity. Such financial instruments include mandatorily redeemable shares, instruments that require the issuer to buy back some 
of its shares in exchange for cash or other assets, or obligations that can be settled with shares, the monetary value of which is fixed. Most of 
the guidance in SFAS No. 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at 
the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 30, 2003. This Statement had no effect on the Corporation’s consolidated financial 
statements.  

In December 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003), Employer’s Disclosures about Pensions and Postretirement Benefits. This 
Statement requires additional disclosures about the assets, obligations and cash flows of defined benefit pension and postretirement plans, as 
well as the expense recorded for such plans. As of December 31, 2003, the Corporation has disclosed the required elements related to its 
defined benefit pension plan in Note 13 to these consolidated financial statements.  

NOTE 2, Restrictions on Cash and Amounts due from Banks  

The Bank is required to maintain average balances on hand or with the Federal Reserve Bank. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, these reserve 
balances amounted to $5,293,004 and $2,210,582, respectively.  

NOTE 3, Investment Securities  

At December 31, 2003, the investment securities portfolio is composed of securities classified as held-to-maturity and available-for-sale, in 
conjunction with SFAS 115. Investment securities held-to-maturity are carried at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of 
discounts, and investment securities available-for-sale are carried at market value.  

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities held-to-maturity at December 31, 2003 and 2002, were:  

The amortized cost and fair values of investment securities available-for-sale at December 31, 2003 were:  

  Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market 
  Cost Gains Losses Value 

  (Dollars in Thousands) 

December 31, 2003         
United States Treasury securities $     176  $        2  $        --  $     178  
Obligations of other United 
 States Government Agencies 11,198  420  (6) 11,612  
Obligations of state and political 
 subdivisions 1,015  117  --  1,132  
  $12,389  $     539  $       (6) $12,922  
December 31, 2002 
United States Treasury securities $     354  $        8  $        --  $     362  
Obligations of other United 
 States Government Agencies 26,047  1,085  --  27,132  
Obligations of state and political 
 subdivisions 1,115  122  --  1,237  
  $27,516  $1,215  $        --  $28,731  
  

  Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market 
  Cost Gains Losses Value 

  (Dollars in Thousands) 

United States Treasury securities $    1,007  $     31  $   --  $    1,038  
Obligations of other United States 
 Government agencies 122,243  606  (907) 121,942  
Obligations of state and political 
 subdivisions 43,293  2,673  (25) 45,941  
Money market investment 896    --  896  



The amortized cost and fair values of investment securities available-for-sale at December 31, 2002 were:  

NOTE 3, Investment Securities (Continued)  

Investment securities carried at $93.5 million and $55.8 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, were pledged to secure public 
deposits and securities sold under agreements to repurchase, Federal Home Loan Bank advances and for other purposes required or permitted 
by law. The Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) stock and the Federal Reserve Bank (FRB) stock are stated at cost as these are restricted 
securities without readily determinable fair values.  

The amortized cost and approximate market values of investment securities at December 31, 2003 by contractual maturity are shown below.  

The proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale (AFS) investment securities, and the related realized gains and losses are shown below:  

NOTE 4, Loans  

Loans at December 31, were reduced by deferred loan fees in excess of deferred loan cost of $60 thousand in 2003 and $19 thousand in 2002. 
At December 31, loans before allowance for loan losses consisted of:  

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 2,500  --  --  2,500  
Federal Reserve Bank stock 169  --  --  169  
Other marketable equity securities 293  107  (27) 373  
Total $170,401  $3,417  $(959) $172,859  
  

  Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market 
  Cost Gains Losses Value 

  (Dollars in Thousands) 

United States Treasury securities $    6,015  $     77  $   (3) $    6,089  
Obligations of other United States 
 Government agencies 67,571  780  --  68,351  
Obligations of state and political 
 subdivisions 48,170  2,808  (8) 50,970  
Money market investment 1,044    --  1,044  
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 1,750  --  --  1,750  
Federal Reserve Bank stock 169  --  --  169  
Other marketable equity securities 150  --  (35) 115  
Total $124,869  $3,665  $(46) $128,488  
  

   December 31, 2003 
   Available-For-Sale Held-To-Maturity 
   Amortized Market Amortized Market 
   Cost Value Cost Value 
   (Dollars in Thousands) 
  
Due in one year or less $    4,791  $    4,809  $  4,016  $  4,079  
Due after one year through five years 113,387  114,846  7,358  7,711  
Due after five years through ten years 41,130  41,633  1,015  1,132  
Due after ten years 7,285  7,722  --  --  
  Total debt securities 166,593  169,010  12,389  12,922  
Other securities without stated maturities 3,808  3,849  --  --  
Total investment securities $170,401  $172,859  $12,389  $12,922  
  

  2003 2002 2001 
  (Dollars in Thousands) 
  
Proceeds from sales of AFS investments $  147  $ 1,350  $ 6,923  
  
Net gains (losses) ----  ----  ----  



Information concerning loans which are contractually past due or in non-accrual status is as follows: 

The Bank has had, and may be expected to have in the future, banking transactions in the ordinary course of business with directors, executive 
officers, their immediate families, and companies in which they are principal owners (commonly referred to as related parties), on the same 
terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with others. The aggregate direct and 
indirect loans of these persons totaled $6.9 million and $2.3 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These totals do not include 
loans made in the ordinary course of business to other companies where a director or executive officer of the Bank was also a director or officer 
of such company but not a principal owner. None of the directors or executive officers had direct or indirect loans exceeding 10% of 
stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2003. Changes to the outstanding loan balances are as follows:  

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, impaired loans amounted to $2.9 million and $2.0 million, respectively. Included in the allowance for loan 
losses was $1.3 million related to $2.9 million of impaired loans at December 31, 2003 and $783 thousand related to $2.0 million of impaired 
loans at December 31, 2002. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the average recorded investment in impaired loans was $2.1 
million and $1.8 million, respectively; and $174 thousand and $137 thousand, respectively, of interest income was recognized on loans while 
they were impaired.  

NOTE 5, Allowance for Loan Losses  

Changes in the allowance for loan losses are as follows:  

NOTE 6, Premises and Equipment  

At December 31, premises and equipment consisted of:  

  2003 2002 
  (Dollars in Thousands) 
  
               Commercial and other $  53,711  $  52,183  
               Real estate - construction 32,844  29,822  
               Real estate - mortgage 241,868  204,946  
               Installment loans to individuals 73,844  88,044  
               Tax exempt loans 2,844  2,966  
                  Total $405,111  $377,961  
  

  
    2003 2002 
    (Dollars in Thousands) 
  
  Contractually past due loans -     
    past due 90 days or more and 
    still accruing interest $736  $608  
  
  Loans which are in 
    non-accrual status $243  $314  

  2003 2002 
  (Dollars in Thousands) 
  
               Balance, beginning of year $  2,302  $  1,803  
               Additions 5,705  1,057  
               Reductions (1,092) (558) 
                   Balance, end of year $6,915  $2,302  

  2003 2002 2001 
  (Dollars in Thousands) 
  
               Balance, beginning of year $ 4,565  $ 3,894  $ 3,649  
               Recoveries 462  383  504  
               Provision for loan losses 1,000  1,700  1,200  
               Loans charged off (1,195) (1,412) (1,459) 
                  Balance, end of year $ 4,832  $ 4,565  $ 3,894  

  2003 2002 
  (Dollars in Thousands) 



NOTE 7, Other Real Estate Owned  

Other real estate consisted of the following at December 31:  

NOTE 8, Certificates of Deposit  

The aggregate amount of certificates of deposits in denominations of $100,000 or more at December 31, 2003 and 2002 was $54,139,000 and 
$53,445,000 respectively.  

At December 31, 2003, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposits are as follows:  

NOTE 9, Indebtedness  

The Bank’s short-term borrowings include federal funds purchased, securities sold under repurchase agreements (including $1.4 million and 
$1.1 million to directors in 2003 and 2002, respectively) and United States Treasury Demand Notes. The federal funds purchased and securities 
sold under repurchase agreements are held under various maturities and interest rates. The United States Treasury Demand Notes are subject to 
call by the United States Treasury with interest paid monthly at the rate of 25 basis points (1/4%) below the federal funds rate.  

The Bank’s fixed-rate, long-term debt of $50 million at December 31, 2003 matures through 2013. At December 31, 2003 and 2002 the interest 
rates ranged from 1.33 percent to 6.60 percent and from 3.33 percent to 6.60 percent respectively. At December 31, 2003 and 2002 the 
weighted average interest rate was 4.27 percent and 5.39 percent respectively.  

NOTE 10, Stock Option Plan  

The Company has stock option plans which reserve 262,992 shares of common stock for grants to key employees. The exercise price of each 
option equals the market price of the Company’s common stock on the date of the grant and an option’s maximum term is ten years. A 
summary of the exercisable stock options is presented below:  

  Land $  3,432  $  3,432  
  Buildings 12,348  10,992  
  Leasehold improvements 951  951  
  Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10,372  9,781  
     Total cost 27,103  25,156  
  Less accumulated 
    depreciation and amortization 12,940  11,876  
     Net book value $14,163  $13,280  

  2003 2002 
  (Dollars in Thousands) 
  Foreclosed real estate $   --  $  665  
  Property held for sale 165  165  
    Total 165  165  

Year (Dollars in Thousands) 
  

2004 $118,113  
2005 40,941  
2006 9,484  
2007 11,562  

Thereafter 16,553   
  $196,653   

Outstanding Granted Exercised Expired Outstanding 
Beginning During During During At End 

of Year the Year the Year the Year of Year 
2001           
Shares 272,826  102,366  (7,920) (3,750) 363,522  
Weighted average exercisable price $17.21  $16.13  $12.34  $16.13  $17.03  
  
2002 
Shares 363,522  --  (47,782) (3,000) 312,740  
Weighted average exercisable price $17.03  $      --  $12.96  $14.20  $17.68  
  
2003 



At December 31, 2003, exercise prices on outstanding options ranged from $12.08 to $27.91 per share and the weighted average remaining 
contractual life was 5.38 years.  

NOTE 10, Stock Option Plan (Continued)  

The Company accounts for its stock option plans in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, which 
does not allocate costs to stock options granted at current market values. The Company could, as an alternative, allocate costs to stock options 
using option pricing models, as provided in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. 
Because of the limited number of options granted and the limited amount of trading activity in the Company’s stock, management believes that 
stock options are best accounted for in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and 
earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation, to stock-based employee compensation.  

Pro-forma amounts in 2002 and 2001 were computed using a 6% risk free interest rate over a 10 year term using an annual dividend rate of 
between 2.26% and 3.15 % and a .01% volatility rate. The pro-forma amount was not computed in 2003 because no options were issued.  

The pro-forma effect of the potential exercise of stock options on basic earnings per share would be to increase the number of weighted average 
number of outstanding shares by approximately 79,000 in 2002 and 18,000 in 2001 .  

In 2001, the Company had an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which reserved 44,970 shares of common stock for eligible employees. The 
purchase price was 95% of the lesser of (1) the common stock’s fair market value at July 1 or (2) the common stock’s fair market value at the 
following June 30. During 2001, 9,037 shares of common stock were purchased by employees.  

NOTE 11, Income Taxes  

The components of income tax expense are as follows:  

The items that caused timing differences affecting deferred income taxes are as follows:  

Shares 312,740  --  (45,248) (4,500) 262,992  
Weighted average exercisable price $17.68  $      --  $14.03  $27.91  $18.13  

Year Ended December 31 
2003 2002 2001 

(Dollars in Thousands except per share 
data) 

Net income, as reported $     7,825  $      7,051  $      5,710  
Deduct: Total stock-based employee 
   compensation expense determined under 
   fair value based method for all awards, 
   net of related tax effects --   (272) (200) 
Pro forma net income $     7,825   $      6,779   $      5,510   
  
Earnings per share: 
   Basic - as reported $1.98  $1.80  $1.47  
   Basic - pro forma N/A  $1.73  $1.41  
   Diluted - as reported $1.92  1.77  $1.46  
   Diluted - pro forma N/A  $1.70  $1.41  

2003 2002 2001 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Currently payable $2,534  $2,515  $1,776  
Deferred 37  (259) (42) 
Reported tax expense $2,571  $2,256  $1,734  

  

2003 2002 2001 
(Dollars in Thousands) 



A reconciliation of the “expected” Federal income tax expense on income before income taxes with the reported income tax expense follows:  

NOTE 11, Income Taxes (Continued)  

The components of the net deferred tax asset included in other assets are as follows at December 31:  

NOTE 12, Lease Commitments  

The Bank has noncancellable leases on premises and equipment expiring at various dates, including extensions to the year 2011. Certain leases 
provide for increased annual payments based on increases in real estate taxes and the Consumer Price Index.  

The total approximate minimum rental commitment at December 31, 2003, under noncancellable leases is $1.5 million which is due as follows: 

Provision for loan losses $(165) $(278) $(108) 
Pension plan expenses 166  (21) (5) 
Deferred loan fees, net (1) 12  10  
Security gains and losses (19) 5  (32) 
Interest on certain non-accrual loans 7  3  57  
Depreciation 52  23  36  
Foreclosed assets (2) (3) --  
Other (1) --   --   
Total $    37   $(259) $    (42) 

2003 2002 2001 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Expected tax expense (34%) $ 3,530  $ 3,165  $ 2,531  
Interest expense on tax exempt assets 52  76  118  
Tax exempt interest (785) (840) (912) 
Disqualified incentive stock options (85) (40) --  
Officer life (146) (114) (7) 
Other, net 5   9   4   
Reported tax expense $ 2,571   $ 2,256   $ 1,734   

  2003 2002 
  (Dollars in Thousands) 
Components of Deferred Tax Liability:     
  Depreciation $  (382) $  (331) 
  Accretion of discounts on securities 
  (6) (24) 
  Net unrealized (gain) on 
   available-for-sale securities (835) (1,231) 
  Deferred loan fees and costs (152) (153) 
  Pension (251) (85) 
    Deferred tax liability (1,626) (1,824) 
  
Components of Deferred Tax Asset: 
  Allowance for loan losses 1,544  1,379  
  Net unrealized loss on 
  available-for-sale securities --  --  
  Net unrealized loss on 
  pension liability 459  --  
 Interest on non-accrual loans 43  50  
Foreclosed assets 69  67  
Capital loss carry forward 42  42  
Trust organizational cost 13   13   
   Deferred tax asset (liability), net $    544   $  (273) 

Year (Dollars in Thousands) 
2004 $307  
2005 254  
2006 255  
2007 256  



The aggregate rental expense of premises and equipment was $317 thousand, $296 thousand and $287 thousand for 2003, 2002 and 2001 
respectively.  

NOTE 13, Pension Plan  

The Corporation provides pension benefits for eligible employees through a defined benefit pension plan. Substantially all employees 
participate in the retirement plan on a non-contributing basis, and are fully vested after 25 years of service. Information pertaining to the 
activity in the plan, using a measurement date of December 31, is as follows:  

2008 153  
Remaining term of leases 291   

Total $1,516  

  Years ended December 31 
  2003   2002   
  (Dollars in Thousands) 
Change in benefit obligation 
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 4,562  $ 3,737  
Service cost 322  257  
Interest cost 282  260  
Benefits paid (259) (309) 
Actuarial change (20) 617  
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 4,887   $ 4,562   
  
Change in plan assets 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 2,462  $ 2,542  
Actual return on plan assets 311  (126) 
Employer contribution 1,073  355  
Benefits paid (259) (309) 
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 3,587   $ 2,462   
  
Funded Status $(1,300) $(2,100) 
Unrecognized prior service cost 6  9  
Unrecognized actuarial gain (loss) 2,032   2,340   
Prepaid pension cost recognized $    738   $    249   
  
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 3,813   $ 3,563   
  
Assumptions used to determine the benefit 
  obligations at December 31 2003 2002 
  
Discount rate 6.50% 6.50% 
Rate of compensation increase 4.50% 4.50% 
  
Amounts recognized in the statement of 
  financial position at December 31 
Prepaid benefit cost $    738  $    249  
Accrued benefit liability (1,349) (736) 
Intangible asset 9  16  
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,340   720   
  $   738  $   249  
  
Components of net periodic pension cost Years ended December 31 
  2003 2002 2001 
  (Dollars in Thousands) 
Service Cost $ 322  $ 257  $ 214  
Interest cost 282  260  240  
Expected return on plan assets (179) (201) (203) 
Amortization of prior service cost 2  7  7  
Amortization of transition obligation --  --  (12) 
Amortization of unrecognized loss 157   93   55   
Net periodic benefit cost $ 584   $ 416   $ 301   



NOTE 13, Pension Plan (continued)  

 

 

 

 

NOTE 14, 401(k) Plan  

The Bank has a defined contribution profit sharing and thrift plan covering substantially all of its employees. The Bank may make profit 
sharing contributions to the plan as determined by the Board of Directors. In addition, the Bank matches thrift contributions by employees fifty 
cents for each dollar contributed up to 3%. Expenses related to the plan totaled $382 thousand, $392 thousand and $350 thousand in 2003, 2002 
and 2001, respectively.  

NOTE 15, Commitments and Contingencies  

In the normal course of business, the Bank makes various commitments and incurs certain contingent liabilities. These commitments and 
contingencies represent off-balance sheet risk for the Bank. To meet the financing needs of its customers, the Bank makes lending 
commitments under commercial lines of credit, home equity lines and construction and development loans. The Bank also incurs contingent 
liabilities related to irrevocable letters of credit.  

 

  Assumptions used to determine net periodic Years ended December 31 
    pension cost 2003    2002    
  Discount rate 6.50% 6.50% 
  Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00% 
  Annual salary increase 4.50% 4.50% 
  
  The overall expected long-term rate of return on plan assets was determined based on 

the current asset allocation and the related volatility of those investments. 

  Weighted average asset allocations at Percentage 
  December 31 of Plan Assets 
    2003    2002    
  Cash and cash equivalents 7.00% 10.00% 
  Government agencies 14.00% 4.00% 
  Corporate debt and equity 78.00% 85.00% 
  Accrued income 1.00% 1.00% 
    100.00% 100.00% 
  
  The pension invests in large and mid-cap equities and government and corporate bonds, 

with the following target allocations: equities 55%, fixed income 40% and cash 5%. The 
pension does not invest in options or derivatives. 

  The Company expects to contribute $999 thousand to its pension plan in 2004. 

  Estimated future benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, 
 
are as follows: 

  (Dollars in Thousands) 
    2004 $   138 
  2005 $   127 
  2006 $   195 
  2007 $   239 
    2008 $   114 
    Years 2009 - 2013 $1,932 
  

  Off- balance sheet items at December 31 are as follows: 

2003    2002    
(Dollars in Thousands)    

Commitments to extend credit: 
Home equity lines of credit $16,340  $14,321  
Construction and development 
 loans committed but not funded 57,027  25,894  
 Other lines of credit 



Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract. 
Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the 
commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash 
requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed 
necessary by the Bank, upon extensions of credit is based on management’s credit evaluation of the customer. Collateral held varies but may 
include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, and income-producing commercial properties.  

Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees written are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a 
customer to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support private borrowing agreements. Most guarantees extend for less than 
two years and expire in decreasing amounts through 2005. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that 
involved in extending loans to customers. The Bank holds various collateral supporting those commitments for which collateral is deemed 
necessary.  

NOTE 16, Fair Value of Financial Instruments  

The estimated fair value of the Bank’s financial instruments at December 31 are as follows:  

The above presentation of fair values is required by the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107 “Disclosures about Market 
Values of Financial Instruments”. The fair values shown do not necessarily represent the amounts which would be received on sale or other 
disposition of the instrument.  

The carrying amounts of cash and due from banks, federal funds sold, demand and savings deposits and securities sold under repurchase 
agreements represent items which do not present significant market risks, are payable on demand or are of such short duration that the market 
value approximates carrying value.  

Investment securities are valued at the quoted market price for individual securities held.  

  (principally commercial) 36,178   27,987   
Total $109,545   $68,202   

  
Irrevocable letters of credit $    1,625   $  1,031   

  2003 2002 
  Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
  Amount Value Amount Value 

  
(Dollars in 
Thousands) 

(Dollars in 
Thousands) 

  
Cash and due from banks $  18,384  $  18,384  $  14,437  $  14,437  
Investment securities, held-to-maturity 12,389  12,922  27,516  28,730  
Investment securities, available-for-sale 172,859  172,859  128,488  128,488  
Federal funds sold 14,969  14,969  8,710  8,710  
Loans, net of allowances for loan losses 400,279  401,546  373,396  375,813  
  
Deposits: 
Non-interest bearing deposits 114,101  114,101  90,621  90,621  
Savings deposits 179,668  179,668  159,077  159,077  
Certificates of Deposit 196,654  198,520  204,354  207,015  
  
Securities sold under repurchase 
 agreement and federal funds purchased 38,007  38,007  21,283  21,283  
  
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 50,000  53,705  35,000  39,193  
  
Interest bearing U.S. Treasury demand 
 notes and other liabilities 
 for borrowed money 1,811 1,811 6,000 6,000 
  
Commitments to extend credit 109,545  109,545  68,202  68,202  
  
Irrevocable letters of credit 1,625 1,625 1,031 1,031 
  



The fair value of loans is estimated by discounting future cash flows using current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers.  

Certificates of deposit are presented at estimated fair value using rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.  

Federal Home Loan Bank advances are presented at estimated fair value using rates currently offered for advances of similar remaining 
maturities.  

NOTE 17, Regulatory Matters  

The Company is required to maintain minimum amounts of capital to “risk weighted” assets, as defined by the banking regulators. At 
December 31, 2003, the Company is required to have minimum Tier 1 and Total capital ratios of 4.00% and 8.00% respectively. The 
Company’s actual ratios at that date were 14.15% and 15.26%. The Company’s leverage ratio at December 31, 2003 was 9.81%.  

The approval of the Comptroller of the Currency is required if the total of all dividends declared by a national bank in any calendar year 
exceeds the bank’s net profits for that year combined with its retained net profits for the preceding two calendar years. Under this formula, the 
banking subsidiary can distribute as dividends to the Company in 2004, without approval of the Comptroller of the Currency, $10.6 million 
plus an additional amount equal to the Bank’s retained net profits for 2004 up to the date of any dividend declaration.  

OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORPORATION  
PARENT ONLY BALANCE SHEETS  

OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORPORATION  
PARENT ONLY  

INCOME STATEMENTS  

As of December 31, 2003   2002   
  (Dollars in thousands)       
ASSETS     
Cash in bank $       635  $      248  
Investment securities 2,284  2,215  
Total Loans -  -  
Investment in subsidiary 60,390  55,637  
Other real estate owned -  -  
Other assets (10) 16   
  $ 63,299   $ 58,116   
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Notes payable - bank $         --  $         --  
Other liabilities -  -  
  Total liabilities -  -  
  
Stockholders' equity 63,299   58,116   
  $ 63,299   $ 58,116   

For the year ended December 31, 2003   2002   2001   

  (Dollars in thousands) 
INCOME       
Cash dividends from subsidiary $ 2,200  $ 1,850  $ 1,700  
Interest and Fees on Loans --  --  --  
Interest income from 
  investment securities 104  98  113  
Securities gains (losses) --  --  --  
Other income 144   144   144   
   Total income 2,448  2,092  1,957  
  
EXPENSES 
Interest on borrowed money --  --  --  
Other expenses 437   397   373   
   Total expenses 437   397   373   



OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORPORATION  
PARENT ONLY  

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  

Accounting Rule Changes  

None.  

Regulatory Requirements and Restrictions  

For the reserve maintenance period in effect at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 the bank was required to maintain with the Federal Reserve 
Bank of Richmond an average daily balance totaling approximately $ 5.2 million, $2.3 million and $581 thousand respectively.  

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure  

None.  

  
Income before taxes and undistributed 
  net income of subsidiary 2,011  1,695  1,584  
Income tax (87) (77) (66) 
Net income before undistributed 
  net income of subsidiary 2,098  1,772  1,650  
Undistributed net income of subsidiary 5,727   5,279   4,060   
   Net income $ 7,825   $ 7,051   $ 5,710   

For the year ending December 31, 2003  2002  2001  

  (Dollars in thousands) 
  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES       
Net income (Loss) $ 7,825  $ 7,051  $ 5,710  
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by 
 operating activities: 
Equity in undistributed (earnings) losses of subsidiaries (5,727) (5,279) (4,060) 
(Gain) or Loss on sales of assets --  --  --  
Increase (decrease) in other assets 2  (2) --  
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities (162) --  --  
  Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,938  1,770  1,650  
  
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Maturity/call of investment securities 100  1,100  90  
Purchases of investment securities (100) (2,100) --  
Payments for investments in and advances to subsidiaries 162  600  (235) 
Sale or repayment of investments in and advances to subsidiaries --  --  --  
(Purchase)/Sale of Premises and Equipment --  --  --  
Loans to customers --   --   --   
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 162  (400) (145) 
  
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in borrowed money --  --  --  
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 427  378  154  
Dividends paid (2,140) (1,776) (1,608) 
Other, net --   --   --   
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities (1,713) (1,398) (1,454) 
  
Net increase in cash and due from banks 387  (28) 51  
Cash and due from banks at beginning of period 248   276   225   
Cash and due from banks at end of period $    635   $    248   $    276   



Item 9A. Controls and Procedures  
Within 90 days prior to the date of this report, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the 
Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design 
and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14. Based upon the evaluation, they 
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in timely alerting them to material information relating to the 
Company (including its consolidated subsidiaries) required to be included in this report. There have been no significant changes in the 
Company’s internal controls or factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of the evaluation.  

The Company’s management, including the CEO and CFO, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal controls 
will prevent all error and fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, provides reasonable, not absolute, assurance that 
the objectives of the control system are met. The design of a control system reflects resource constraints and the benefits of controls must be 
considered relative to their costs. Because there are inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute 
assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been or will be detected. These inherent limitations 
include the realities that judgements in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns occur because of simple error or mistake. Controls 
can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control. 
The design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events. There can be no assurance 
that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all future conditions; over time, controls may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-
effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.  

PART III  
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant  
The information set forth under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the 2004 Proxy Statement 
is incorporated herein by reference.  

The Board of Directors of the Company has determined that Mr. Russell Smith Evans, Jr., a director and member of the Audit Committee, 
qualifies as an “Audit Committee Financial Expert” as defined in rules adopted by the Security and Exchange Commission pursuant to the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted an Insider Policy: Conflict of Interest/Code of Ethics which details principles and 
responsibilities governing ethical conduct for all Company directors, officers, employees and principal shareholders. The Insider Policy: 
Conflict of Interest/Cod eof Ethics is filed as an Exhibit to this Report on Form 10-K.  

Item 11. Executive Compensation  
The information set forth under the caption “Executive Compensation” in the 2004 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.  

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and RelatedShareholder  
Matters  
The information set forth under the caption “Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans” in the 2004 Proxy 
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.  

The information set forth under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the 2004 Proxy Statement 
is incorporated herein by reference.  

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions  
The information set forth under the caption “Interest of Management in Certain Transactions” in the 2004 Proxy Statement is incorporated 
herein by reference.  

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services  
The information set forth under the caption “Principal Accounting Fees” in the 2004 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.  



PART IV  
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K  
(a)(1)     Financial Statements:  

 

 

(a)(2)     Financial Statement Schedules:  

(a)(3)     Exhibits:  

  The following audited financial statements are included in Part II, Item 8, of this Annual Report on 
Form 10K. 

  Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 31, 2003 and 2002 

  Consolidated Statements of Income 

  Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 

  Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity 

  Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 

  Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

  Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 

  Notes to Financial Statements 

  Auditor's Report 

Schedule Location 
Average Balance Sheets, Net Interest Income and Rates Part I, Item 1 
Analysis of Change in Net Interest Income Part I, Item 1 
Interest Sensitivity Analysis Part I, Item 1 
Investment Security Maturities and Yields Part I, Item 1 
Loans Part I, Item 1 
Maturity Schedule of Selected Loans Part I, Item 1 
Nonaccrual, Past Due and Restructured Loans Part I, Item 1 
Analysis of the Allowance for Loan Losses Part I, Item 1 
Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses Part I, Item 1 
Deposits Part I, Item 1 
Certificates of Deposit $100,000 and more Part I, Item 1 
Return on Average Equity Part I, Item 1 
Short Term Borrowings Part I, Item 1 
Selected Financial Data Part II, Item 6 
Capital Ratios Part II, Item 7 
Dividends Paid and Market Price of Common Stock Part II, Item 7 
Contractual Obligations Part ii, Item 7 
Investment Securities Part II, Item 8 
Proceeds from sales and maturities of securities Part II, Item 8 
Premises and Equipment Part II, Item 8 
Other Real Estate Owned Part II, Item 8 
Stock Option Plan Part II, Item 8 
Components of Income Tax Expense Part II, Item 8 
Reconciliation of Expected and 
    Reported Income Tax Expense Part II, Item 8 
Lease Commitments Part II, Item 8 
Pension Plan Part II, Item 8 
Commitments and Contingencies Part II, Item 8 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments Part II, Item 8 

2  Not Applicable 

3  Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws 

4  Not Applicable 

9  Not Applicable 

10  Not Applicable 

11  Not Applicable 

12  Not Applicable 



(b) Reports on Form 8-K:  

A Current Report, Form 8-K was filed on October 16, 2003 to furnish under Item 12, the Company’s third quarter earnings.  

INDEX OF EXHIBITS  
      Exhibit No.  

Signatures  
        Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on the 29th day of March, 2004.  

OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORPORATION  

 

        Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of 
the registrant and in their capacities on the 29th day of March, 2004.  

13  Not Applicable 

14  Code of Ethics 

16  Not Applicable 

18  Not Applicable 

21  Subsidiaries of the Registrant 

22  Not Applicable 

23  Consent of Independent Certified Public Accountants 

24  Powers of Attorney 

31  Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certifications 

32  Section 1350 Certifications 

2  Not Applicable 

3  Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws 

(incorporated by reference from our Annual Report on Form 10-K for 

the year ended 1998 (File No.000-12896)) 

4  Not Applicable 

9  Not Applicable 

10  Not Applicable 

11  Not Applicable 

12  Not Applicable 

13  Not Applicable 

14  Code of Ethics 

16  Not Applicable 

18  Not Applicable 

21  Subsidiaries of the Registrant 

22  Not Applicable 

23  Consent of Independent Certified 

Public Accountants 

24  Powers of Attorney 

31  Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certifications 

32  Certification of Chief Financial Officer 

/s/Robert F. Shuford  
Robert F. Shuford, President 



/s/Robert F. Shuford President and Director 

Robert F. Shuford Principal Executive Officer 

  

/s/Laurie D. Grabow Executive Vice President 

Laurie D. Grabow 
Principal Financial and Accounting 
Officer 

  

/s/James Reade Chisman Director 

James Reade Chisman 

  

/s/Richard F. Clark Director 

Richard F. Clark 

  

/s/Russell S. Evans, Jr. Director 

Russell S. Evans, Jr. 

  

/s/G. Royden Goodson, III Director 

G. Royden Goodson, III 

  

/s/Dr. Arthur D. Greene Director 

Dr. Arthur D. Greene 

  

/s/Gerald E. Hansen Director 

Gerald E. Hansen 

  

/s/Stephen D. Harris Director 

Stephen D. Harris 

  

/s/John Cabot Ishon Director 

John Cabot Ishon 

  

/s/Eugene M. Jordan Director 

Eugene M. Jordan 

  

/s/Louis G. Morris Director 

Louis G. Morris 

  

/s/John B. MorganII Director 

John B. Morgan II 

  

/s/Dr. H. Robert Schappert Director 

Dr. H. Robert Schappert 

  

/s/Melvin R. Zimm Director 

Melvin R. Zimm 



Exhibit 31.2  

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO  

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,  

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO  

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  

I, Laurie D. Grabow, certify that:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: March 29, 2004  

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Old Point Financial Corporation; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or 
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under 
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual 
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of 
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure 
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 (e) and 15d-15 (e)) for the registrant 
and have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the 
period in which this report is being prepared; 

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of 
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

c) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an 
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of 
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the 
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over 
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record , 
process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant 
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting. 

/s/Laurie D. Grabow 
Laurie D. Grabow 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 



Exhibit 32.2  

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO  

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,  

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO  

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  

In connection with the Annual Report of Old Point Financial Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 
2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Robert F. Shuford, Chief Executive Officer of 
the Company, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:  

 

 

 

Date: March 29, 2004  

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934; and 

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and 
results of operations of the Company as of and for the periods covered in the Report. 

 
 
 
/s/Laurie D. Grabow  
Laurie D. Grabow  
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 



Exhibit 32.1  

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO  

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,  

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO  

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  

In connection with the Annual Report of Old Point Financial Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 
2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Robert F. Shuford, Chief Executive Officer of 
the Company, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:  

 

 

 

Date: March 29, 2004  

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934; and 

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and 
results of operations of the Company as of and for the periods covered in the Report. 

 
 
 
/s/Robert F. Shuford  
Robert F. Shuford  
President and Chief Executive Officer 



Exhibit 31.1  

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO  

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,  

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO  

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  

I, Robert F. Shuford, certify that:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: March 29, 2004  

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Old Point Financial Corporation; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or 
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under 
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual 
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of 
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure 
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 (e) and 15d-15 (e)) for the registrant 
and have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the 
period in which this report is being prepared; 

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of 
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

c) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an 
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of 
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the 
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over 
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record , 
process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant 
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting. 

/s/Robert F. Shuford 
Robert F. Shuford 
President and Chief Executive Officer 



EXHIBIT 14. CODE OF ETHICS  

Insider Policy: Conflict of Interest/Code of Ethics  
Policy Statement  
Insider abuse and violations of an institution’s code of ethics can greatly affect the financial health and reputation of an organization. 
Therefore, all directors, officers, employees, and principal shareholders are required to act in a responsible and ethical manner and to remain 
free of influences that may result in the loss of objectivity regarding business conducted with Old Point Financial Corporation’s customers, 
customers of its subsidiaries or with Old Point Financial Corporation itself. Each must avoid any interests or activities involving another 
organization or individual that may result in an actual conflict of interest or have the appearance of a conflict of interest between Old Point 
Financial Corporation, its subsidiaries, and that organization or individual. While this policy does not intend to interfere with the personal lives 
of Old Point Financial Corporation’s representatives and those of its subsidiaries, it requires those persons to recognize situations where 
conflicts of interest may arise, avoid them when possible, and to maintain the highest ethical standards in all dealings with and between this 
corporation, its subsidiaries and our customers.  

Administration and Responsibilities  
The primary accountability and responsibility for the Insider Policy rests with each individual director, officer, employee and principal 
shareholder. It is incumbent upon all individuals to demonstrate by example what compliance with this policy means. All employees and 
insiders are encouraged to approach any member of Executive Management or their direct supervisor with questions regarding any aspect of 
this policy or any activity that could be interpreted as a violation of this policy. Such discussions will be strictly confidential, unless a violation 
of law or policy has occurred and demands company action.  

The Executive Vice President-Administration is responsible for administering this policy and assuring that each director, officer, employee and 
principal shareholder has reviewed this policy and has certified that they have received, read and agreed to comply with the policy.  

This policy must be disseminated annually to all of the company’s directors, executive officers, and principal shareholders. These insiders must 
provide written acknowledgement of receipt of the policy and/or any subsequent policy revisions and must sign an agreement stating 
compliance with the terms of the policy. No policies need be furnished to the related interests of such persons.  

The Board of Directors will annually approve this policy. In addition, the Board is responsible for ensuring that the policy creates an 
environment that is inconducive to unethical behavior by company employees and insider fraud and abuse.  

On a periodic basis, the Audit Department will conduct a review of procedures, documentation, and minutes of the Board of Directors meeting 
to test for compliance with this policy.  

Definitions  
The term “company” in this policy refers to Old Point Financial Corporation and its subsidiaries, Old Point National Bank and Old Point Trust 
and Financial Services, N.A.  

An “executive officer” is so named by resolution of the Board of Directors for the Old Point Financial Corporation and each of its subsidiaries. 
An executive officer is defined as one who participates or has authority to participate in major policy making functions of the company whether 
or not the officer has an official title.  

The term “insider” is defined by Regulation O as all directors, executive officers, principal shareholders and includes any related interests of 
such persons.  

A “member bank”  means any banking institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System.  

Organizational Functional Area: Administration 
Policy For: Insider Policy: 

Conflict of Interest/Code of Ethics 
OPFC Board Approved 
OPNB and OPT and FS Adopted: June 2003 
Last Revision Date: May 2001 
Last Review Date: June 2003 
Department/Individual Responsible 
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A “principal shareholder” is a person (other than an insured bank) that directly or indirectly, or acting through or in concert with one or more 
persons, owns, controls, or has the power to vote more than 10 percent of any class of voting securities of a member bank or company.  

A “related interest” is a company controlled by that person or a political or campaign committee that is controlled by that person or the funds or 
services of which will benefit that person.  

A “conflict of interest” is an interest that conflicts with the purpose, policies, or operations of Old Point Financial Corporation and its 
subsidiaries.  

Conflicts of Interest  
Directors, officers, employees and principal shareholders of this company are expected to conduct their personal and business affairs in a 
manner that avoids even the appearance of a conflict of interest between their self interests and their duties and obligations to the company, its 
customers, and its shareholders.  

Similarly, any association with the company must not be used for personal gain (beyond authorized compensation and benefits) nor may 
company property, services, information, or influence be used for one’s own or another’s private advantage.  

All directors, officers, employees and principal shareholders should remove him or herself from any compromising situation where an actual or 
apparent conflict of interest exists. These situations must be disclosed immediately as outlined in the Disclosures section of this policy.  

Outside Directorships  
Directorships that might pose a conflict of interest or create the appearance of a conflict of interest are to be avoided. If an actual or apparent 
conflict of interest develops and cannot be immediately resolved, you are to promptly withdraw from the conflict of interest. If this situation 
cannot be avoided, it must be disclosed immediately as outlined in the Disclosures section of this policy.  

Fiduciary Appointments  
Prior written approval is required, as outlined in the Disclosures section of this policy, before any employee may accept an appointment as a 
fiduciary (executor, administrator, guardian, or trustee) or, as co-fiduciary with another person, firm, or corporation, except in the case when 
acting on behalf of a family member or personal associate.  

Employees may not receive a fee for acting as co-fiduciary with the company unless approval from its Board of Directors is received.  

Except when acting in an official capacity for the company, employees are not to act as agent or deputy in any signing capacity on any account 
(except for members of their families and personal associates) that is held in the company without prior written approval as outlined in the 
Disclosures section of this policy.  

Outside Employment/ Other Business Activities  
Outside employment for company employees with other businesses is permitted under the following conditions only:  

 

 

All company employees must obtain prior written approval, as outlined in the Disclosures section of this policy, when engaging in outside 
employment or other business activities.  

Confidential And “Inside” Information / Personal In vestments  
Confidential information about existing or potential customers or suppliers available to directors, officers, employees and principal 
shareholders as a result of their position is to be used solely for the company’s business purposes and never for personal gain. In no way should 
this information be given to or discussed with persons outside the company, or to other company associates unnecessarily.  

As part of your employment and or election, you agree and acknowledge that during and after your association, you will not disclose 
confidential information about the company, company business or the company’s customers obtained as a result of your position.  

Financial information regarding the company is always confidential and must not be given to any person unless it has been published in reports 

  o   Job duties do not violate specific banking laws or regulations. 

  o   Holding the position does not present a conflict of interest with the individual’s position at the company, either by the 
nature of the other business or by excessive requirements of the individual’s time. 



to our shareholders or otherwise publicly disseminated.  

In some instances, confidential information may be considered “inside” information. If such information is used or disclosed, the employee, the 
company, and anyone outside the company to whom the information is disclosed could be subject to liability under federal and state securities 
laws.  

While it is recognized that directors, officers, employees and principal shareholders have the right to make personal investments, sound 
judgement must be exercised to avoid any financial involvement that is illegal or that might convey any appearance of impropriety.  

This policy basically prohibits any attempt to profit from material non-public information about the company, any client, any supplier, or any 
other company. Transactions that may involve, or appear to involve, a conflict of interest between directors, officers, employees or principal 
shareholders and the company or one of its customers or suppliers are prohibited.  

Giving or Accepting Gifts, Hospitality, Payments, or Preferential Treatment  
Giving or accepting gifts, hospitality, payments or preferential treatment to or from clients or vendors (suppliers) may be a conflict of interest 
and may result in prosecution under the Comprehensive Crime Control Act of 1984.  

Prohibitions Against Accepting Gifts, Hospitality, Payments, or Preferential Treatment  

        Unless authorized below under the heading, “Exceptions to Prohibitions Against Accepting Gifts, Hospitality, Payments or Preferential 
Treatment,” any director, officer, employee or principal shareholder is prohibited from:  

 

 

 

Exceptions to Prohibition Against Accepting Gifts, Hospitality, Payments or Preferential Treatment  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  o   Accepting gifts of cash or cash equivalent instruments, such as personal checks, money orders, traveler’s checks, or gift 
certificates. 

  o   Soliciting for themselves or for a third party (other than the company) anything of value from anyone in return for any 
business, service, or confidential information of the company. 

  o   Accepting anything of value (other than salary, wages, fees, or other compensation paid in the usual course of business) 
from anyone in connection with the business of the company either before or after a transaction is discussed or 
completed. 

  As long as it is not prohibited above and all of the criteria listed below are met, directors, officers, employees and principal shareholders 
may accept gifts (other than cash or cash equivalent instruments) or acts of hospitality of reasonable value without violating the policy. 
(In most cases, “ reasonable value”  is considered to be $50.00 or less.) 

  o   No effort is being made to influence the intended recipient’s professional judgement. 

  o   Intended recipient’s judgement is not affected by the acceptance of the gift or hospitality. o Intended recipient has not 
solicited the gift or hospitality. 

  In most circumstances, the following gifts, hospitality, payments or preferential treatment may be accepted without violating policy: 

  o   Gifts, gratuities, amenities, or favors motivated by an obvious family or personal relationship that exists outside of the 
company such as gifts from parents, children, or spouses. 

  o   Meals, refreshments, travel arrangements or accommodations, or entertainment, provided that: 

  -They are of a reasonable value, and 

  -They are offered in the course of a meeting or other occasion, for the purpose of providing an opportunity for a business 
discussion or to foster better business relations, and 

  -They are expenses that would have been paid by the company as a reasonable business expense, had the expenses not 
been paid by another party. 

  o   Loans with standard terms may be obtained from merchants or financial institutions other than Old Point National Bank, 
to finance common needs, for example, home mortgage loans (except where prohibited by law). 

  o   Advertising or promotional materials of reasonable value, such as pens, pencils, note pads, key chains, calendars, and 
similar items. 



 

 

 

 

 

Purchase of Preferential Treatment  

 

 

 

Prohibited Lending Practices  
Certain specific lending practices are prohibited either by law or by company policy. For purposes of this section, the term “lending officer” 
refers to any staff member who has been given lending authority by the company.  

Personal Financial Involvement in Extending Credit  

 

 

 

 

 

Borrowing and Lending from Clients, Suppliers, or Other Staff Members  

 

 

 

Granting of Preferential Terms  

 

  o   Discounts and rebates on merchandise or services that do not exceed those offered to other customers of the individual or 
merchant offering the discount/rebate. 

  o   Gifts of reasonable value that are presented in connection with commonly recognized events, such as holidays, weddings, 
births of children, promotions, new jobs, or retirements. 

  o   Civic, charitable, educational, or religious organizational awards for recognition of services or accomplishments. 

  On a case-by-case basis, the company may approve the acceptance of gifts of value or hospitality (greater than $50.00) under 
circumstances not previously specified, as follows: 

  o   The individual makes a full written disclosure of all relevant facts and requests prior written approval as outlined in the 
Disclosures section of this policy. 

  The company prohibits offering, giving, soliciting, or accepting bribes, kickbacks, extraordinary commissions, or other devices for the 
purchase of favored treatment or reward of favored treatment by governments, other businesses, or individuals. Any request for or offers 
of such kind must be disclosed immediately as outlined in the Disclosures section of this policy. 

  Fees or commissions are to be paid only for clearly stated business purposes. Hospitality at meals, business meetings, and social events 
may be extended by you, provided it is moderate, is appropriate to the situation, and avoids compromising the company, yourself, or the 
recipient. 

  The services of brokers, dealers, lawyers, consultants, and other professionals are to be chosen on the basis of qualifications, quality, 
price and benefit to the company. 

  When you act as a lending officer, as defined under, “Prohibited Lending Practices,” you must not extend credit (An overdraft is 
considered an extension of credit) to the following, unless an executive officer has pre-approved the transaction: 

  o   Clients, if any of the proceeds are to be given to or loaned to you, used to pay a debt owed by you, or to benefit you in 
any other way. 

  o   Clients, if any of the proceeds enable them to purchase real or personal property from you. 

  o   Relatives or significant others. 

  o   Companies in which you have an interest as a director, officer, controlling person or partner, or in which a member of 
your immediate family has such an interest. 

  Company policy prohibits any director, executive officer, employee or principal shareholder from borrowing directly or indirectly from 
clients, suppliers, or other staff members on their own behalf or on behalf of someone else. Similarly, lending personal funds to clients, 
suppliers, other staff members, agency employees, or independent contractors is not allowed unless prior written approval is obtained as 
outlined in the Disclosures section of this policy. 

  You may make an occasional loan of nominal value (e.g., for lunch) to another staff member as long as no interest is charged. 

  The policy on personal borrowing and lending does not apply to family members or to loans from institutions normally in the business 
of lending. Family members are defined as spouse, minor children, or relatives (by marriage or otherwise). 

  It is the policy of this company that its lending services be made available to serve the legitimate and deserving credit needs of clients 
on an equitable basis. Concessions of rate and other terms shall be based on a borrower’s creditworthiness and overall client relationship 
with the company or otherwise in accordance with company policy. 



Loans to Insiders  

 

 

Conduct of Insiders  
12 CFR § 215, or federal Regulation O, defines “insiders” as directors, executive officers, principal shareholders, and the related interests of 
each of these persons. These people must take care that their conduct does not violate rules relating to self-dealing and personal gains. At no 
time are members of this group allowed to take advantage of their position in the company for personal profit or influence over credit and other 
decisions with regard to their business or personal interests.  

Insiders are prohibited from being involved in the approval process and must abstain from voting on any loan or business transactions from 
which the insider may benefit directly or indirectly. This prohibition extends to professional relationships with any company or firm receiving 
renumeration as a result of the decision to grant credit.  

Decisions regarding the sale or purchase of company assets and services must be made in the best interests of the company, with no influence 
on insiders resulting from gifts, entertainment, or gratuities. All conduct of such business must be at an arm’s length.  

Insiders must disclose, as outlined in the Disclosures section of this policy, any material interest they may have in the business of a borrower, 
an applicant, other customer, vendor, or supplier when transactions with that person could present an actual or potential conflict of interest.  

Approval of Insider Transactions  
The company is prohibited from entering into any insider transactions (business dealings) unless certain conditions are met. "Business dealing" 
is defined as follows:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

In order to be a permissible transaction, a business dealing between the company and an insider must meet these conditions:  

 

 

Business dealings between the company and an insider greater than $25,000.00 are considered significant and must be submitted to the Board 
of Directors or a committee of the Board for prior approval.  

Business dealings that are less than $25,000.00 are considered insignificant in nature and effect and do not warrant the protections established 
by this policy.  

Insider Transactions Recordkeeping Requirements  

  Loans to directors, executive officers, principal shareholders and their related interests of Old Point Financial Corporation and Old Point 
National Bank are subject to the restrictions and limitations of Regulation O of the Federal Reserve System. It is the policy of the 
company to fully comply with Regulation O. 

  Directors, executive officers, principal shareholders and their related interests of the company may obtain loans from other financial 
institutions at the same rates, terms, and conditions, as those given to other clients from that financial institution. 

1.   The sale, purchase, or other conveyance of assets, goods or services to or from the company.  

2.   The use of the company's facilities, real or personal property, or its personnel.  

3.   The lease of property, equipment or other assets to or from the company.  

4.   The payment by the company of commissions and/or fees including, but not limited to, brokerage commissions and management, 
consultant, architectural, and legal fees.  

5.   Service agreements.  

6.   The payment of interest on the deposits of an insider to the extent that the rate of such interest exceeds the amount paid to other 
depositors on similar deposits with the company.  

1.   The business dealing must be intended for the benefit of the company and not be entered into by the company merely as an 
accommodation for the benefit of the insider.  

2.   The business dealing must be made on terms and under circumstances substantially the same, as those prevailing at the time for 
comparable business dealings with persons not covered by the regulation. In the absence of comparable business dealings, the terms 
and circumstances of the business dealing with the insider must be substantially the same, as those that would apply to business 
dealings with persons not covered by the regulation.  



Adequate, centralized records of all insider transactions must be kept in a form and manner that will enable easy, independent review. The 
records must identify:  

 

 

 

 

Disclosures/ Recordkeeping  
Directors, officers, employees and principal shareholders of the company must make required disclosures or obtain prior approval of the 
appropriate party in certain cases such as fiduciary appointments, outside employment activities, receipt of gifts, or affiliations which may 
result in even the appearance of a conflict of interest. All necessary approvals or disclosures should be made as follows:  

It is incumbent upon each director, officer, employee and principal shareholder to obtain prior approvals and disclose information appropriately 
in accordance with this policy.  

All documentation must be forwarded to the Executive Vice President- Administration so that the policy can be adequately administered.  

Furthermore, all insiders of the company and its subsidiaries must make annual disclosures of their related interests as defined by Regulation O 
and in the Definitions section of this policy.  

Consequences of Noncompliance  
Failure to comply with this policy may result in the termination of employment or removal from the company’s Board. The action taken will be 
commensurate with the seriousness of the conduct and an evaluation of the situation. Serious violations will be brought to the attention of the 
Board of Directors.  

1.   The names of the parties to the transaction other than the company.  

2.   The relationship of the parties to the company (or to the insider).  

3.   A brief description of the transaction and its terms.  

4.   A notation of any dissenting votes cast along with the basis of the dissent.  

Employees: Report to direct supervisor 
Officers: Report to an Executive Officer 

Executive Vice Presidents 
and Chief Executive Officer: Report to Board of Directors 

Board Members and 
Principal Shareholders: Report to Executive Vice President –Administration 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To The Board of Directors  
Old Point Financial Corporation  
Hampton, Virginia  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Old Point Financial Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 
and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, cash flows and changes in stockholders’ equity for each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 2003. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Old Point 
Financial Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of 
the years in the three-year period ended December 3l, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  

February 27, 2004  
Norfolk, Virginia  

                                  /s/Witt Mares Eggleston Smith, PLC  

                                  Witt Mares Eggleston Smith, PLC  



Old Point Financial Corporation  
Power of Attorney  

        I, Richard F. Clark, do hereby constitute and appoint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my true and lawful attorney-in-fact, any of 
whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me and in my name and on my behalf as a director and/or officer of Old Point Financial 
Corporation (the “Corporation”), to act and to execute any and all instruments as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or advisable to 
enable the Corporation to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Act”), and any rules, regulations, policies or 
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) in respect thereof in connection with the preparation and filing by 
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and any and all amendments 
to such Report, together with such other supplements, statements, instruments and documents as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or 
appropriate.  

        I do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attorneys or attorney shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.  

        WITNESS my execution hereof this 29th day of March, 2004  

Old Point Financial Corporation  
Power of Attorney  

        I, Richard F. Clark, do hereby constitute and appoint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my true and lawful attorney-in-fact, any of 
whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me and in my name and on my behalf as a director and/or officer of Old Point Financial 
Corporation (the “Corporation”), to act and to execute any and all instruments as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or advisable to 
enable the Corporation to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Act”), and any rules, regulations, policies or 
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) in respect thereof in connection with the preparation and filing by 
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and any and all amendments 
to such Report, together with such other supplements, statements, instruments and documents as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or 
appropriate.  

        I do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attorneys or attorney shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.  

        WITNESS my execution hereof this 29th day of March, 2004  

Old Point Financial Corporation  
Power of Attorney  

        I, Gerald E. Hansen, do hereby constitute and appoint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my true and lawful attorney-in-fact, any 
of whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me and in my name and on my behalf as a director and/or officer of Old Point Financial 
Corporation (the “Corporation”), to act and to execute any and all instruments as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or advisable to 
enable the Corporation to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Act”), and any rules, regulations, policies or 
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) in respect thereof in connection with the preparation and filing by 
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and any and all amendments 
to such Report, together with such other supplements, statements, instruments and documents as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or 
appropriate. 

        I do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attorneys or attorney shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.  

        WITNESS my execution hereof this 29th day of March, 2004  

/s/Russell S. Evans, Jr.   (SEAL) 
Russell S. Evans, Jr. 

/s/Richard F. Clark   (SEAL) 
Richard F. Clark 

/s/Gerald E. Hansen   (SEAL) 
Gerald E. Hansen 



Old Point Financial Corporation  
Power of Attorney  

        I, Gerald E. Hansen, do hereby constitute and appoint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my true and lawful attorney-in-fact, any 
of whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me and in my name and on my behalf as a director and/or officer of Old Point Financial 
Corporation (the “Corporation”), to act and to execute any and all instruments as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or advisable to 
enable the Corporation to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Act”), and any rules, regulations, policies or 
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) in respect thereof in connection with the preparation and filing by 
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and any and all amendments 
to such Report, together with such other supplements, statements, instruments and documents as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or 
appropriate. 

        I do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attorneys or attorney shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.  

        WITNESS my execution hereof this 29th day of March, 2004  

Old Point Financial Corporation  
Power of Attorney  

        I, Gerald E. Hansen, do hereby constitute and appoint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my true and lawful attorney-in-fact, any 
of whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me and in my name and on my behalf as a director and/or officer of Old Point Financial 
Corporation (the “Corporation”), to act and to execute any and all instruments as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or advisable to 
enable the Corporation to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Act”), and any rules, regulations, policies or 
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) in respect thereof in connection with the preparation and filing by 
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and any and all amendments 
to such Report, together with such other supplements, statements, instruments and documents as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or 
appropriate. 

        I do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attorneys or attorney shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.  

        WITNESS my execution hereof this 29th day of March, 2004  

Old Point Financial Corporation  
Power of Attorney  

        I, Gerald E. Hansen, do hereby constitute and appoint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my true and lawful attorney-in-fact, any 
of whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me and in my name and on my behalf as a director and/or officer of Old Point Financial 
Corporation (the “Corporation”), to act and to execute any and all instruments as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or advisable to 
enable the Corporation to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Act”), and any rules, regulations, policies or 
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) in respect thereof in connection with the preparation and filing by 
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and any and all amendments 
to such Report, together with such other supplements, statements, instruments and documents as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or 
appropriate. 

        I do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attorneys or attorney shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.  

        WITNESS my execution hereof this 29th day of March, 2004  

/s/Stephen D. Harris   (SEAL) 
Stephen D. Harris 

/s/John Cabot Ishon   (SEAL) 
John Cabot Ishon 



Old Point Financial Corporation  
Power of Attorney  

        I, Gerald E. Hansen, do hereby constitute and appoint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my true and lawful attorney-in-fact, any 
of whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me and in my name and on my behalf as a director and/or officer of Old Point Financial 
Corporation (the “Corporation”), to act and to execute any and all instruments as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or advisable to 
enable the Corporation to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Act”), and any rules, regulations, policies or 
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) in respect thereof in connection with the preparation and filing by 
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and any and all amendments 
to such Report, together with such other supplements, statements, instruments and documents as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or 
appropriate. 

        I do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attorneys or attorney shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.  

        WITNESS my execution hereof this 29th day of March, 2004  

Old Point Financial Corporation  
Power of Attorney  

        I, Gerald E. Hansen, do hereby constitute and appoint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my true and lawful attorney-in-fact, any 
of whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me and in my name and on my behalf as a director and/or officer of Old Point Financial 
Corporation (the “Corporation”), to act and to execute any and all instruments as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or advisable to 
enable the Corporation to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Act”), and any rules, regulations, policies or 
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) in respect thereof in connection with the preparation and filing by 
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and any and all amendments 
to such Report, together with such other supplements, statements, instruments and documents as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or 
appropriate. 

        I do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attorneys or attorney shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.  

        WITNESS my execution hereof this 29th day of March, 2004  

Old Point Financial Corporation  
Power of Attorney  

        I, Gerald E. Hansen, do hereby constitute and appoint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my true and lawful attorney-in-fact, any 
of whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me and in my name and on my behalf as a director and/or officer of Old Point Financial 
Corporation (the “Corporation”), to act and to execute any and all instruments as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or advisable to 
enable the Corporation to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Act”), and any rules, regulations, policies or 
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) in respect thereof in connection with the preparation and filing by 
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and any and all amendments 
to such Report, together with such other supplements, statements, instruments and documents as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or 
appropriate. 

        I do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attorneys or attorney shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.  

/s/Eugene M. Jordan   (SEAL) 
Eugene M. Jordan 

/s/Louis G. Morris   (SEAL) 
Louis G. Morris 

/s/Robert F. Shuford   (SEAL) 
Robert F. Shuford 



        WITNESS my execution hereof this 29th day of March, 2004  

Old Point Financial Corporation  
Power of Attorney  

        I, John B. Morgan, II, do hereby constitute and appoint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my true and lawful attorney-in-fact, any 
of whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me and in my name and on my behalf as a director and/or officer of Old Point Financial 
Corporation (the “Corporation”), to act and to execute any and all instruments as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or advisable to 
enable the Corporation to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Act”), and any rules, regulations, policies or 
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) in respect thereof in connection with the preparation and filing by 
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and any and all amendments 
to such Report, together with such other supplements, statements, instruments and documents as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or 
appropriate. 

        I do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attorneys or attorney shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.  

        WITNESS my execution hereof this 29th day of March, 2004  

Old Point Financial Corporation  
Power of Attorney  

        I, G. Royden Goodson, III, do hereby constitute and appoint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my true and lawful attorney-in-
fact, any of whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me and in my name and on my behalf as a director and/or officer of Old Point 
Financial Corporation (the “Corporation”), to act and to execute any and all instruments as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or 
advisable to enable the Corporation to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Act”), and any rules, regulations, 
policies or requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) in respect thereof in connection with the preparation and 
filing by the Corporation with the Commission of its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and any and all 
amendments to such Report, together with such other supplements, statements, instruments and documents as such attorneys or attorney deem 
necessary or appropriate. 

        I do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attorneys or attorney shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.  

        WITNESS my execution hereof this 29th day of March, 2004  

Old Point Financial Corporation  
Power of Attorney  

        I, Melvin R. Zimm, do hereby constitute and appoint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my true and lawful attorney-in-fact, any of 
whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me and in my name and on my behalf as a director and/or officer of Old Point Financial 
Corporation (the “Corporation”), to act and to execute any and all instruments as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or advisable to 
enable the Corporation to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Act”), and any rules, regulations, policies or 
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) in respect thereof in connection with the preparation and filing by 
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and any and all amendments 
to such Report, together with such other supplements, statements, instruments and documents as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or 
appropriate. 

/s/Dr. Arthur D. Greene   (SEAL) 
De. Arthur D. Greene 

/s/John B. Morgan, II   (SEAL) 
John B. Morgan, II 

/s/G. Royden Goodson, III   (SEAL) 
G. Royden Goodson, III 



        I do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attorneys or attorney shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.  

        WITNESS my execution hereof this 29th day of March, 2004  

Old Point Financial Corporation  
Power of Attorney  

        I, Dr. H. Robert Schappert, do hereby constitute and appoint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my true and lawful attorney-in-
fact, any of whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me and in my name and on my behalf as a director and/or officer of Old Point 
Financial Corporation (the “Corporation”), to act and to execute any and all instruments as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or 
advisable to enable the Corporation to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Act”), and any rules, regulations, 
policies or requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) in respect thereof in connection with the preparation and 
filing by the Corporation with the Commission of its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and any and all 
amendments to such Report, together with such other supplements, statements, instruments and documents as such attorneys or attorney deem 
necessary or appropriate. 

        I do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attorneys or attorney shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.  

        WITNESS my execution hereof this 29th day of March, 2004  

Old Point Financial Corporation  
Power of Attorney  

        I, James Reade Chisman, do hereby constitute and appoint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my true and lawful attorney-in-fact, 
any of whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me and in my name and on my behalf as a director and/or officer of Old Point Financial 
Corporation (the “Corporation”), to act and to execute any and all instruments as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or advisable to 
enable the Corporation to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Act”), and any rules, regulations, policies or 
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) in respect thereof in connection with the preparation and filing by 
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and any and all amendments 
to such Report, together with such other supplements, statements, instruments and documents as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or 
appropriate. 

        I do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attorneys or attorney shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.  

        WITNESS my execution hereof this 29th day of March, 2004  

/s/Melvin R. Zimm   (SEAL) 
Melvin R. Zimm 

/s/Dr. H. Robert Schappert   (SEAL) 
Dr. H. Robert Schappert 

/s/James Reade Chisman   (SEAL) 
James Reade Chisman 



EXHIBIT 21. SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT 

The Old Point National Bank of Phoebus, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, is a national banking association subject to regulation 
by the Comptroller of the Currency, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and the Federal Reserve System.  

Old Point Trust and Financial Services, N.A., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, is a national banking association subject to 
regulation by the Comptroller of the Currency, and the Federal Reserve System.  


